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FINAL EDIT 6/25/2024 WRITTEN AND COMPLETED 6 MONTHS AFTER TERMINATION 
LETTER.​
My name is Emilio Taveras and I am facing extreme mental illness discrimination done to me by 
BNS Real estate in collaboration with Dream Charter school opening up in the neighborhood 
who has been recording and overtly spying on me to convince my bosses that I am too mentally 
ill and need to be fired. I was also investigating corrupt business practices in my neighborhood 
at the time, only to find out my boss was now dealing with the same entities. I am up against a 
large development network that consists of Dream Charter school(previously KNOWN as 
HARLEM RBI)l/Brookfield properties/Joy construction/JCAL as they have been in close relations 
in contracts and services my bosses are newly taking advantage of. They are also deeply 
involved in political affairs and have deep ties to politicians whose pockets are lined by their 
financial ventures. I am fighting for my job after a smear campaign using recordings and videos 
of me in my private life in my neighborhood, harassing my employer, to the point where my 
employer BNS Real estate has heavily persecuted me for mental illness.They have painted me 
a monster and caused my job to be terminated. My boss believed I was too crazy to be safe in 
the company, but it's not true at all. I worked my job for 7 and a half years in the same mindset 
and condition.The diabolical organization of investors that have decided to usurp me, I now 
know by name, organizations and affiliations and I am aware of their goals, dreams, and 
desires. Unfortunately they have collaborated to destroy my life by terminating my employment 
for BNS REAL ESTATE via slander, blackmail recordings, and harassment with financial 
pressure of new business deals because I was on to their uncanny deeds, financial 
racketeering, political corruption, and plan to use the school to remove key neighborhood 
figures and families who have resided here for years.​
​
 My boss succumbed to pressure from them and has now abandoned his best employee under 
the guise that I have paranoid schizophrenia. While my ideas and beliefs are strange, none of it 
interferes with my job, and I truly fear that if I am not employed at BNS, living in the community 
that loves and knows me for years, that I will have no place in society. This wrongful termination 
is causing me to lose all my workshops/store rooms, access to my private basement gym, and 
my possible eviction from my humble apartment home since I am a Superintendent, which I 
have gone to great lengths to care for and maintain since I was 21. All I wanted was to work and 
have a peaceful life in my apartment, be able to hang out and be with my neighborhood friends, 
I have no wife, no children, I live as a hermit with nothing but my humble kingdom, evil has 
come to strip my crown VIA, harassment of my employer to feed their demands, financial 
manipulation of my bosses,and overt spying/gangstalking because of hatred of my personal life 
beliefs, my free speech, and  my said mental illness. While they point the finger at my flaws, 
they buy out and pocket politicians who have done little to nothing for long standing members of 
this community. I have worked diligently for approximately Seven and a Half years at BNS Real 
estate, always doing a good job even working through the pandemic of 2020. My role requires 
me to be on call 24/7 which I have almost always fulfilled my duty to. The amount of work I’ve 
done for BNS is massive. I love my company and my buildings with all my heart, and all parties 
involved knew that. By convincing my bosses I was crazy I have faced the worst, most 
degrading test of moral character and yet I proved myself time and time again simply for the 
love of my job and life.​



​
I am attempting to save my company, for I love my bosses and my employer. These developers 
have tactically used the pandemic which my company suffered financially in, to create deals and 
backdoor them for control of their properties, especially the lot on 132nd street, for financial 
incentive, which due to their money struggling pain in the pandemic, chose to take, in order to 
stay afloat. I have worked the whole pandemic to serve my employer and despite tenants not 
paying rent, I remained employed with my company despite my objection to the vaccine 
because I simply worked diligently to be let go, on top of my religious exemption of the vaccine 
which they have a copy of. They are firing me for my alcohol and marijuana use in my private 
life, and also for my mental sanity. None of which is legal, but the only reason they break the law 
is the duressive financial state they are in due to these new investors and the school these 
entities hold. My company has put up with my spiritual beliefs and mental standings for many 
years, they know me well. I am bizarre by worldly standards but I am not the disgusting 
moraless drug abuser these new investors have convinced them of. The neighborhood I live in 
knows me very well, and they know  my quirks and behavior, none of which hate me for what 
behaviors I exhibit in my private life  when I am strolling about the block. This company would 
have never let me go under normal circumstances but financial duress from these entity’s 
harassment and blackmailing, have forced them to take methods to ensure my removal. They 
know me and my antics very well, and have a great upstanding reputation for keeping their 
employees. I am willing to take this to the supreme court of law to attempt to prove  multiple 
parties who operate as new waterfront developers, with extreme money ties, and CRIMINAL tier 
business deals of buying properties, and invasion of landlords who suffered during a pandemic 
to extort the means to control all of the neighborhood as well as placing pawns of politicians into 
key roles to accomplish their take over.. This coalition hates all men and women who do not fit 
society's norm. While they advertise the south Bronx as the spot to be in, they have decimated 
long term landlords and took advantage of a global pandemic to do so. Including but not limited 
to BNS Real estate. They have constantly displaced local residents within the neighborhood. As 
well as actively destroy and harm the lives of anyone they deem mentally ill.​
​
It is my duty to produce this document in the only way I know possible to save BNS real estate 
from these developer’s taking over their properties by offering them financial incentives, 
gathering control of who they rent to, and oppressive means with contracts and deals simply 
because during the pandemic my company suffered and terminating one of their best 
employees because he had become opposition to their plan, by spying, blackmail, and slander 
and scaring them about my said “mental” health, causing them to discriminate against me, 
terminate me, and create the false belief that I was capable of crime and sabotage, and using 
heavy illegal substances. I am also standing in defense of the neighborhood as new and bigger 
buildings get put up,  so that all my people can live a prosperous life and be free of victimization 
by these developers who  seek to control all who live in the neighborhood so they can create 
their fantasy land in the bronx. They despise the mentally ill, the men who walk the street, and 
those who are known in the community and are actively paying attention to the money 
laundering madness. I have become a big target because of  my self expression and manors of 
walking and self talking and standing for all things i believe in.The coalition of developers I am 
up against are partnered with Microsoft, Pfizer, and various huge companies and institutions of 



power who have profited endlessly off the pandemic while my company suffered and had very 
little choice but to take these deals to survive financial collapse. My employer has suffered the 
most as they were offered deals they could not refuse and now had been ordered to terminate 
me under the same controllers. A decision that my bosses would have never had done to me 
but this relentless attack on me had forced their hand as they are now financially in the grip of 
these south bronx developers who tactically benefited from the financial hardship of my 
employer.​
​
These developers have collaborated against me with major harassment of my employer with 
overt spying and judgment of me in the neighborhood but did not expect me to know the men 
and women who link them all together by their name. I do NOT believe these men are 
individually responsible as it is a network of partnerships and deals done in the dark. These are 
just the prominent figures in the chain that usurps my place in the south bronx. My bosses have 
deals behind closed doors to these guys which I was unaware of until now and their hatred 
towards my personal life, friends, and associates have caused my wrongful termination. These 
men infiltrated my employment company through deals and business and have thrown me 
under the bus in an attempt to fully control the Landmark buildings, Glass works and the Piano 
factory as well as the parking lot of 132nd st of the south Bronx. Due to these building locations 
and them being iconic and being on the same street of the school, gracefully existing on both 
ends. It is a take over of the block and lot. I have stood in the way of their control and I will 
continue to stand in the way until Justice is served.​
​
​
They are taking over from the top down, but also bottom up. My wrongful termination is a 
decision that comes from neighborhood developers who seek to not have me in their Dream 
plan for the south bronx. My status in the neighborhood, often knowing everyone, being a local, 
and my awareness and presence of watch over the block and buildings, as well as my bizarre 
behavior I have been deemed dangerous to have around for I would soon catch on to their 
darker deeds. I was an easy target because I am weird, live alone, and have behaviors many 
consider mentally ill. Behind closed doors, my bosses did talks with Joshua Weissman, Jorge 
Madgura of MaddRealities, Eli Weiss of Joy Construction, Charlie Howe of brookfield properties 
who has major ties to Dream Charter School aka Harlem RBI, and ALL of their major 
associates/Companies as well as links to politicians who are partnered with the infamous 
blackstone group. Leaving me to the wind. They pretend not to all know each other. I wish 
simply that they have left me alone. All I wanted was a peaceful life in my community, free to 
live, as long as we did not commit crime. I will give a brief description of each related man to the 
best of my knowledge. By eliminating me they take out a serious roadblock that hinders their 
corruption of development and full control of my neighborhood. These men from this charter 
school even have politicians in their bag, have money laundering businesses around the 
neighborhood, and to top it all off, have backdoored BNS with deals to corrupt the company into 
firing their local neighborhood superintendent, Emilio Taveras. They need me gone because I do 
not fit the social norm of their neighborhood, I am vocal with weird perks of behavior and 
thought, and I know many people in the neighborhood. There is also a clear link to the business 
side to it all as they seek to Eliminate parole, who rents and owns property in the Piano factory 



and glassworks and secure deals with all landlords in what I too consider to be the Piano 
District. Since I am the  super of these landmark buildings, they knew to keep me around would 
be detrimental to their take over, not be beneficial to their advertisement, and ultimately reveal 
that mott haven is indeed still a Bronx neighborhood full of different peaceful people. They are 
attempting to control all businesses around the area, while they set up their laundering fronts. ​
But first my company let me summarize my role as a BNS employee.​
​
I work as a superintendent who  is on call 24/7. I live in 129 Alexander, a residential building but 
handle all emergencies after hours for the multiple buildings in the south bronx. My bosses work 
in the real estate office, with one of them who comes as the field manager. I almost always 
without fail had all of the 4 major buildings I work in cleaned and maintained before he stops by 
at 12. My other two co-workers mostly sit to work in 79/26 Bruckner because it is quite large, 
around the same size as my far complex of rider and canal. I do about the work of 2 men for 
BNS. Which I am more than capable of and love doing. Since one worker, Godfrey, is ready to 
retire being nearing 70 years old, I was the prospect to take his bigger job position which I had 
full plans to retire in. My other coworker, Michael, is about a year older than me and we hired 
him after the passing of my great friend and coworker Danny Longmore. Michael does a great 
job cleaning and handling tenants but he doesn’t share the same passion and love I have for my 
buildings or the trade skills needed to cover my role, and his life isn't built around his job like my 
life is. I love my job, however since the interaction with me and my boss is slim and rare, they 
don't truly understand me but my work ethic has always spoken for itself as pretty much all my 
tenants love me and I have gotten into almost no issues in 7 and a half years of work.​
​
I have been a super of about 5 buildings, I've seen all walks of life and have gotten along with 
each and every individual I chose to interact with. I have almost no major disputes with tenants, 
and I have  done righteousness by all tenants, even taking up more tasks  than are considered 
my job. I have what I consider to be 5 buildings with multiple addresses, have worked a job 
most men would consider a nightmare which included being on call 24/7 No matter what in 
emergencies, a duty I fulfilled whenever humanly possible. Yet I was at peace and happy 
despite all the massive workload. Here is the list of my buildings. I know these buildings 
perfectly, I have a full mental map of all the buildings features and secrets. I am one with these 
buildings and I know their in and outs perfectly.  I love my  job dearly, and having served my  
duty to this job for 7 and a  half years, including  during the whole pandemic. ​
​
14 BRUCKNER/90 LINCOLN/82 LINCOLN/92LINCOLN- Known as GLASSWORKS​
​
This building sits humbly on the corner next to dream charter school. This was my main hub for 
work, it contained most of my supplies, belongings, and as a result it has been heavily 
integrated into my life. I store most of my tools here and my mechanic shop exists in this 
building as well as my major food supplies. It is host to parole like my other building as well as 
good tenants all around. I stored even my stockpile food here. They intend to hopefully use this 
as part of the school since dream charter school who currently operates with mostly teenagers 
will soon offer grades k-12. This is my main work hub and all my Certificates from the fire 
department are tied in some way to this building. I have done a major amount of work, and 



saved my employer plenty of dollars as much of the work I do I do out of willingness, I take up 
any repair I am capable of and am responsible for all of the cleaning in public areas. Big 
contingency point as it is directly across from 101 Lincoln which was bought by brookfield for 
165 Million when the original developer spent 5 Billion to develop it. Triton, who is doing the 
construction for 101 Lincoln, used to use my building as a hub for office operations, until they 
set up their own hub within the construction property. This is very important for seeing the bigger 
picture.  Parole operates in this building, a big contingency point as  to why they need to remove 
the building super first, and since I have behavior they could deem unstable, they have hurt me 
in so many painful ways.​
​
79 ALEXANDER/26 ​ BRUCKNER- Known as PIANO FACTORY​
This building is mostly monitored by my two co workers, however I know it just as well as ​
them, and have been on call for it as well 24/7. I have taken care of this building plenty and 
there have been times where my help was much needed. I have trained the new worker to do a 
decent job but he does not have the love or the passion I have for my work. It hosts a critical 
part of my life, my home gym which I have built within the basement. I use the gym regularly and 
I have accomplished physical feats in this basement that many men wish they could have felt 
that ​ level of power and strength I achieved in those moments. I have had no issues with my 
belongings sitting open free, I do lock my barbell up as I do not want anyone getting hurt. The 
tenants here are businesses and great people. Many people consider this to be two ​
buildings. Parole operates here as well. I had used the gym space in the basement that Danny 
Longmore originally had some equipment there. I had trained in that gym for years. Parole 
Operates here as well.​
​
363 RIDER/366 CANAL​
This building is a MEGA LOT, in fact there are so many addresses to it that to list them all ​
would be cumbersome. It extends from about 141st to 142st on both canal and rider. This 
building is isolated from the rest of my job and requires you to commute about 5 minutes by car 
and 15-20 minutes walking. I have done my job here well. The community around this building 
has neighbors that are various drug users and vandalizers, none of which I have ever had any 
problems with. While it is further from my personal life, I have a deep affinity for it as well. I have 
amazing tenants within these walls as well. Many people will consider this portion of the job to 
be at least 3 buildings. Around this beautiful complex are drug addicts, crackheads, and many 
dealers who respect my block because they see me diligently cleaning, treating them like 
human beings, and understanding their walk of life. They respected my building because I 
always saw them as human even when they were shoving needles and high off drugs, I gave 
them love and respect, and never once treated them unfairly just because of how they lived. 
They even always stated that they would keep things clean for me, and they have indeed done 
their best, as they began to know me for 7 years plus. Many of the drug users and surrounding 
cast of characters know me and my building well, hence why it sits gracefully among the 
unaccepted crowd of societal outcasts, the mentally ill, and people who are human like me.​
​
129 ALEXANDER​
This is where ​my home is. I sought simply nothing more than to be able to retire and die within 



these walls. I do not have anything I consider home ​ more than my humble apartment on 
the first floor. I have taken care of this building greatly, and have been responsible for both 
maintenance, repairs, and cleaning duties. I love this building, but more importantly, I love my 
home. My neighbors are very kind to me as well. Since this building is closer to my personal life, 
many of ​ My tenants have access to my private life, and may even peer into my bizarre or 
quirky habits. I am no normal man. However I have protected all my tenants with my life, despite 
me knowing some of even the hated people in their community. They know as long as I am 
around, they are protected from even what they consider the worst of my friends. None of my 
friends are bad, which is ironic, you are only as devilish as others' perception of you. Something 
these developers fail to understand. Currently I am still the only caretaker of the building, I do 
garbage and sweep outside since management has now barred me from ​doing repairs and the 
heavier service I used to. Despite me being terminated, I continue to take care of and serve this 
building as long as I live here. I refuse to resign from my duties as a super.​
​
Due to the complexities of the piano factory, and the lot at Rider and Canal, I usually say I have 
5 buildings. Some may say upwards of 6/7, in fact when I started the job I was handed a list of 
about 8-10 different addresses and I did not cringe or complain, I was ready to serve my life 
toward BNS and more importantly my buildings.​
​
To discuss some key figures that are simply links in this greater insidious plot to control the 
south Bronx with use of a school, taking out community members they view fringe or 
unpleasing, using financial leverage to grab land with powers in key positions, in a 
neighborhood that suffered financially after the pandemic. ​
​
Through the covid 19 pandemic these groups were able to launch the biggest scheme of money 
laundering, land grabbing, and property take over, now they are on a warpath to displace 
members of the community, hold business hostage to launder money, and overall attempt to 
control what comes, and force who leaves the neighborhood. With my firing, they seek to control 
the landmark buildings, who rents from them,  and who works in them.​
​
They hate homeless people, they hate the poor people, and they hate mentally ill people, while 
they actively work  to ensure that people end up homeless with malicious intent. They have 
been using dream charter school/Harlem RBI to do this for years.​
​
None of the following men are explicitly responsible but they are key members of the matrix 
network of dream charter schools, in fact, they are all collectively working together to clean up 
the neighborhood and I have been caught in the crossfire because I happen to know many of 
the people they desire to get rid of. I also am in a key important position of maintenance for the 
landmark buildings that they are pressuring my management about since their location is 
between us.​
​
Charlie Howe of brookfield properties is the brookfield link to dream charter school, he is in bed 
with the Charter school, as a result he sought to eliminate me on whatever he thinks is 
unacceptable around ​a school. He and Brookfield properties have infiltrated my employer via 



deals. He has no problem destroying hard working men and since he works for brookfield 
properties he has helped destroy my life through backdoor talks he has with BNS. He has a 
moral problem with certain community members, thinks he can do whatever he wants, and due 
to his connections at dream charter school is using it to take down any community member he 
pleases. I consider him to be at the head of this mess because my boss is now using brookfield 
contractors after they had a meeting with him behind closed doors.​
​

​
​



​



​
​
​
Staff of Dream charter school are simply just a lackies following their bosses commands, when I 
stopped by dream in april to kindly ask for proper treatment of my friend who was arrested. I 
was told someone would call me back, over the phone the staff threatened to have me arrested 
too, a clear sign of guilt and wrong doing, so I took to the streets, and took my friends rap sheet 
and launched the greatest art performance in the south Bronx of all time for the freedom of my 
friends and community. I risked my kingdom. I was not arrested but they instead decided to 
blackmail my bosses with out of context footage, and evil intents to make me lose my whole 
livelihood and job. I protested wine in hand, with shouts at the sky because I know all self 
expression has a right to exist and  the community  member I sought to protect does yell at the 
air sometimes he was holding beer, and I deemed what they did cruel to tow my friend’s car that 
he lived in because they seek full control of the parking on bruckner between lincoln and 
alexander avenue and jail him with use of the 40th precinct. Any rational man could have 
reasoned instead, or saw that he was known and he was no danger. I do not hate the staff, I 
forgive him because they are just following orders. I only mention them because my arrest 
threat prompted me to stand up. There is something very evil about threatening the 
superintendent of the building parole leases that triggered the need to stand up in me. 
Especially since I see criminals attempting to regain their freedom on a daily basis. Beyond that, 
I was already aware of their ties and corruption, I just had no clue my bosses behind closed 
doors submitted to these gentrifiers.​
​
Eli Weiss, developer and of joy construction, and Charlie Howe are good friends in dark rooms 
and back shady allies. As a result they seek to push people out so they can have their dream. 
Both are behind Dream charter school. They know if they control a school, they can abuse 
community members and influence parents and politicians as well as use the police force 



wrongfully against those who have been here for years. They have used the school and their 
business deals with my bosses to terminate me wrongfully of my employment because it was 
the only way to get me out of the community. By attacking my artistic self expression they 
successfully succeeded in creating a problem in the minds of my employer, bringing unneeded 
surveillance of me, pretending as if I was dangerous. And forcing my torture with harsh 
treatment, and disgusting defamation of my character and principles. He seems to own Joy 
construction which has ironically aided in the removal of my happiness and freedom. Very sad. 
He is also in with NYU who you will read about their abuse of me later.​
​

​

​



​
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Drew Kats is the son of Lewis Katz, and he had his father die in a plane crash, to give you an 
idea of how powerful these people are. None of this is related  to him, he has since stepped 
away from everything, he is a MAJOR victim of these powers. His father Lewis Katz was the 
original owner of 20 bruckner where the school now resides; he had refused to sell the buildings 
even after a relentless Department of buildings attack that caused the building to lose right to 
occupancy. All these developers profited off the death of Lewis as he refused to sell his 



buildings. Hence why after his death, they became available for these developers in a 
bloodstained sale.​



​



In regards to the construction for Dream, drew katz serves as a passive investor since 2016 

​
​
 Let's talk about Lewis Katz (drew’s father) and his feud with George Norcross. Since Lewis 
Katz is the original owner of 20 bruckner his death is really important to understanding how 
much power these men have. Lewis katz was attacked by the mafia back years ago. And even 
had his law firm raided. His friend Simon endured an attempt to having his house burn down. 
After beating George Norcross of New Jersey in a law firm bid, Lewis Katz’ plane crashes the 
next day alongside the wife of a New Jersey prosecutor. 

​



​



​
Immediately after Lewis was victorious he died in a plane crash the next day. Also the wife of a 
New Jersey prosecutor who I suspect was looking into Norcross’ Legal matters.





Now you can understand exactly why Drew katz stepped down as well a few weeks later. What 
makes this so important is Katz also was in the charter school business, there was also the wife 
of a new jersey prosecutor on the plane, which is ironic as George Norcross is currently going 
down for corruption, I am not saying he killed Katz but I am going to say that Gary Cohn who is 
now the head of IBM, who is partnered with Rolls Royce which the plane Katz died in 
(Gulfstream IV), might know something about a digital override causing the plane to derail, over 
rev and explode. You can look up details of the plane crash. ​

​
​
George Norcross is affiliated to the charter school deal as the father of Drew Katz, was killed 
after beating George Norcross in a bid for a news network. I believe him to be  likely secret 
partners with Gary Cohn’s Charter school as they both feature KIPP. at the top of the ordealing. 
Due to  Katz's original feud with Norcross, there is a reason Gary cohn’s charter school gets a 
place in his  building. The rupert ice houses also have a big link to baseball, hence why it was 
so desirable. Katz was harassed by the department of buildings which ended up getting the 
building shut down and when he passed, 14 Bruckner was purchased by my bosses.​



​



​



​



​
What makes this character more interesting is the group that was behind the LEGAL dispute 
between Norcross and Katz is none other than Blackstone which is currently heavily 
represented on the ambassador list on the school’s list. The money ties are there and these 
people are just links in the chain of entities that have caused my boss to do terrible things to me. ​



​
​
Jorge ​ Madgura of GDI/MADD realities, is a sweetheart but he is tied into this as his company 
built the school with plans to ultimately control all of the booming south bronx. He is my favorite 
of the 4 developers. Him and GDI were great to me, so I am only listing his name here due to 
affiliation. GDI built the school in collab with Joy construction.​
​
To put in perspective how well connected Dream charter school is to high level politicians, and 
most importantly the department of buildings, despite 20 bruckner being one of the most 
dangerous construction sites. Look at the minimum amounts of fines they paid on lives lost. 
They have such big financial power that they were able to get away with paying not even a 
middle class year’s salary in fines. I had known this long ago, but I never thought they would 
harm me or my job with their wrong doings. 



​
​
Dream charter school was previously known as Harlem RBI, they have changed their name but 
they are no stranger to displacing people living in poor communities based on their actions in 
harlem. It is very important to note that they have switched their names but the goals, intentions 
and methods remain the same. It serves as using children for political gain while displacing poor 
and low income members of the community, of course this evil entity would come by the poorest 
area, mott haven, in the bronx, and displace/harm us as well. They always do it while hiding 
behind the kids. Pretending that the mentally ill have no place in their community because now 
there are children around, they can tactically eliminate people like me. Richard Berlin is still the 



head of dream, but don't worry, he cares about  kids that he imports from all over the city, more 
than he cares about the 30 homes that can host families of the neighborhoods, let him do his 
quick 3x math, but i know 30  homes do not house just 30 people. ​

​
Of course their development of East harlem causes them to be no stranger to causing supers to 
lose their job. ​
​
I checked into the dream chater’s school AKA Harlem RBI finances and they have hid about  80 
Million in assets from the Department of education. Their NYSED filings are completely different 
from the massive amount of money the organization has. In fact when they report their finances 
to the New York state Education Department, they are missing 80 Million. ​



​
​
However whenever they report on just their school there is about 80 Million missing from the 
network. However since Harlem RBI is now dream, Where did this 80million dollars of assets go 
to? Certainly not the children. I am accusing them of hiding this money partly because their 
political figure head, is currently suing the U.S. Department of Education for missing money, 
which is likely just a cover to the fact that Harlem RBI has members of their network pocketing 



large amouints of money, 80million in asset does not suddenly disappear when you do a 
different audit of the next year. In fact since Harlem RBI only seems to exist as the charter 
school, it is very obvious that their network is operating in secret to hide millions of dollars that 
should be being utilized for the children. 

​
​



​



​
​
Dream charter school has moved to 20 bruckner which sits in between my buildings. They were 
somehow able to get it in between parole, because part of the plan is to get rid of parole. They 
just made the mistake of firing a super who would never let them get away with this criminal 
behavior.​
​
So who exactly do Dream Charter (Harlem RBI) and all these corrupt south bronx developers 
have their dream team to be even able to hide 80Million dollars from their network? How deep 



do the ties run? I will continue to expose it all. ​
​
Ritchie Torres the 15th congressional district politician so he is the highest tier of individual 
power that has targeted me. He is in bed with these people having been to visit Dream charter 
school. Appearing numerous times to support the mass matrix-like organization that is 
responsible for my removal. They have him in their pocket just to show you the level of political 
ties this school has, and why I would eventually be attacked by them in such a way my landlord 
broke all moral, ethical, and even legal code to fire me after 7 and a half years. Another link to 
this shadow operation of a corrupt game plan to target communities with adverse removal of 
workers with ties to the neighborhood, and overall bring about the gentrification they desire is 
the major link of real estate companies who donated to his campaign. The ratios are so off that 
this feels criminal. He does not represent our community if most of his money came from 
outside sources that solely seek to develop our area.  I am up against people so powerful. 
There is a high level political connection to my attack, he advocates for charter schools and 
uses them tactically in developing neighborhoods. He had visited the school but I am certain the 
money flow is there as well because black stone group was his 3rd largest funder. Black stone 
group is heavily represented on dreams board of directors. In fact almost all his funding comes 
from Real estate investors. He is owned and operated by them, simply a pawn used to do their 
bidding while they gentrify and destroy communities. He serves in my district but none of his 
money actually comes from the neighborhoods he supposedly represents. Very suspicious 
indeed. ​





 
He is also behind attacks on the board of education. Their plans are simple: by using charter 
schools, they can target individual community members, other real estate landlords to heed their 
bidding, and ultimately control the neighborhood, but they also apparently have no problem 
getting hard working men in the neighborhood fired, and arresting those they deem undesirable. 
Evident by my termination and arrest of my community member, and later even more evident by 



their hostage holding of me in the psych ward with lies and use of police force. It is part of their 
gentrification plan to help eliminate those they do not see fit in certain development 
neighborhoods.  I am ashamed that my termination comes off the back of these highly powerful 
political people. It makes perfect sense for the charter school to be backing this man while he 
continues to hide their wrong doing and potential money laundering to extort the department of 
education. If these children and parents ever found out that the Dream charter school network 
has 80 million dollars that they don't bother utilizing for the children, how would they react? This 
is not even including the ridiculous amount of money they gain for even enrolling a student. And 
yes that money is done per semester. ​
​
​



​



​
​



​



​
​
How strong is Dream/Harlem RBI? Well apparently strong enough to get prince Harry to visit. 
Their high level ties are so immense I don't understand why these people couldn't just leave me 
alone, I can't fathom why these people would want to get me fired. They hate hard working 
middle class men and it's just obvious to anyone who follows current events and knows how 
shrinking the middle class is. I too am a victim now sentenced to poverty. ​



​
​
​
 I am going to discuss odd businesses and operations in my neighborhood involving recently 
land grabbing developer JCAL. JCAL appeared out of nowhere in the south Bronx yet scooped 
up old vacant lots to build brand new buildings. They have also built Bridgeline. They host a lot 
of the main businesses on Alexander, many of which seem to just be MONEY Laundering, as 
there is absolutely no way they survived the pandemic, or even are capable of functioning. 
Some that questionally by some miracle, profited and were functional during the pandemic with 
city aid and more. Jcal host, Beatstro and all its partners linked to a man called Afledo Anguiera, 
which is known for being one of the first food distributors during the pandemic where they 
handed out boxes of food. Lit bar which somehow operates as a front of a bookstore, making 
almost no sales, somehow stayed functional in its first year of running mid pandemic, implying 
they were making money some other way. Thinkubator, which has remained closed for years, 
the ex tattoo, old art studio, and now body modification shops at 126 and but strangely 
registered to thinkubators address. All of these I suspect to be JCAL entities. I will also be 
linking JCAL directly to the school through their ceo.​
​
Thinkubator, despite doing No business, being previously an event spot that hosted events 
before the pandemic took it out, has received 700k+ in grants to do ABSOLUTELY NOTHING. 
But let me tell you where the money likely went.  Now look how fake thinkubator is with their 
photo operations.​
​



https://thethinkubator.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Summer-Newsletter-2020.pdf​
​
In fact they too are linked to Ritchie Torres Who i mentioned before. All this was a MONEY 
FUNNEL during the pandemic to eventually take over the south bronx. Thinkubator does 
absolutely nothing and everyone in the neighborhood can tell you that spot is dead, rarely 
opened, took the money, and ran. All these men's businesses are collectively running a racket 
of money funneled from the government through covid responses. These are some pictures 
from their photo operation newsletter. They just needed to make it look legit, but all the money 
went elsewhere and somehow thinkubator still is holding the spot, but I know for a fact that 
money is being used for SCULPT. ​

​

https://thethinkubator.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Summer-Newsletter-2020.pdf


​

​
The neighboring ex art studio/tattoo shop is now a body shop at 126 alexander. It is a 
professional spa/body modification/teeth whitening full service body care shop pretty much. 
While I do not support the body modification industry, I can tell you with utter certainty the 
thinkubator grants have funded this. ​



​
The ADDRESS for sculpt is 126, but their LLC is filed in thinkubators address. All of this I 
believe to be linked to JCAL’s man Alfredo Anguiera. These buildings are currently run by true 
management but given the ties of just who works in Sculpt i do believe this venture is linked to 
jcal/beatsro/alfred anguiera. Now get this those buildings are run by true management, but 
despite no business in thinkcubator, the spot seems to be being held by the same team with 
money laundering through sculpt which isn't even registered at the right address as it holds 126 
and not 128 Like its listed. And since it used to be an old tattoo shop/art studio, I do believe this 
business just is the same money funnel changing names to avoid suspicion. ​
​



​
​
​
​
Strangely Ritchie Torres supports chocobar which is a puerto rican restaurant that opened up in 
the neighborhood within jcal’s buildings. Jcal somehow was able to come out of nowhere and 
scoop up a lot of property as well as being behind the construction of bridgeline. Chocobar is 
also located in a JCAL building. Just to show you how they are advertising using their 
connections.​
​



​
 ​
But when you look at the news network Bronx net which they promote a lot of their covers and 
endevours on you can see who really supports it.As they cover their own, and support ritchie 
torres at a very unusually frequent rate. You can find numerous articles of chocobar, beatstro, 
thinkubator and of course extended content with ritchie torres the man who was bought out by 
these developers. This is part of their money funnel network as well, it serves as their media 
control group. Notice the bronx borough president is here but guess how fresh direct entered 
the neighborhood?​

​



​
​
I’m going to cover fresh direct before moving forward. ​
What is more interesting is beatstro, who is owned by a guy dominating many businesses in the 
area under Jcal’s management. In fact he even was on a board meeting with Ritchie Torres to 
gain a liquor license for his new bodega social that is opening up across the street from 
chocobar about two years after the license was obtained in a board meeting. The list is long so I 
will just link the header the document is easy to find. Beatstro has a network that is operating in 
the neighborhood as 3 businesses, Bricks n hops, beatstro its self, and bronx draft house. . ​

​
​
This man’s name is Alfredo Angueira. His bodega social somehow shows up in board meetings, 
had connections to operations that provided food during the pandemic off of non profit relief 
which i can prove here. What makes this odd is the number of meals they claim to provide was 
nothing. I had witnessed their attempt, and honest to god, they did not have that many people 
lined up for the duration of winter like they claim. I am accusing this to be a funnel of money. For 
some reason this man also has deep political ties. His full resume can be seen here. In one of 
the shadiest operations the WCK raised a bizarre 10x of their original revenue and even tripled 
their assets. If you search this man’s  name his connections are SERIOUS. ​





​



 



 
 
They teamed up with WCK, controlled by Nate Mook. Which tax records are openly available. 
They had funneled large amounts of non profit money in what I deem one of the weirdest, most 
illogical tax records, the numbers just absolutely do not seem to add up, to make things more 
bizarre their number of employees /volunteers is abysmal. In fact  there is almost no way you 
could move that amount of food worth that much money with a measly 3500 volunteers 



​
Now guess who Nate Mook is affiliated with, of course the rockefeller foundation. He of course 
has stepped down from his position after doing his dirt. Their tax record is so suspect and it can 
be found here. They have made a killing off a worldwide pandemic somehow tripling their 
revenue and nearly quadrupling their assets. 
https://worldcentralkitchen.cdn.prismic.io/worldcentralkitchen/a601308e-9264-4587-b13e-dac51
44e7996_2020_990_public.pdf​



​
​



​

 



​
​
​
​
​
Enter the lit bar, one of the weirdest Jcal tenants who somehow despite running a bookstore 
that makes almost 0 sales, survives the pandemic with little to no issue. I believe her operations 
to be funded by these same business ties. It makes no sense why she would be able to operate 
during the pandemic, or even worse, financially survive. Somehow they partnered with 
bookshop.org right in January but yet, there were no shipments of books coming or entering her 
shop. In fact she was rarely operating and always empty, I am certain that there is no way her 
company survived unless she is operating as a money funnel for jcal’s expensive rent as she 
even has a full fledged basement. On  top of that  suddenly  in January of 2020 she linked up 
with bookshop.org which gained major funding out of NOWHERE. Ultimately this business is a 
cover business and given its Jcal association I am not surprised, as even beatstro somehow 
stayed afloat “giving” out meals that nobody wanted. In fact these jcal partner’s names pop up 
together so much, it's obvious they are products of an inner working deal. The theme is simple, 
be puerto rican, and you will gain the “community trust”, a complete fallacy as they launder 
money and usurp and distress old landlords who have operated in the area for years. This land 
grab extends to the highest levels of power.​



​
What  makes this even odder is our guy Alfredo Anguiera just randomly appears in the article. ​



​
The spot on the corner that is now becoming bodega social, was previously taken from our guy 
Keith rubenstein as well​

​
Destroying Keith Rubenstein seems to be part of their goal, they appear to have taken so much 



from him in very weird suspicious business deals. ​
​
Lets talk about the coffee shop that gets absolutely no business that  suddenly changed its 
name to a puerto rican theme. ​

​
Once again filtered coffee a keith rubenstein business gets hijacked by the same developers 
and changes name to a puerto rican theme RIGHT AS chocobar the puerto rican themed 
restaurant opens. Somehow surviving the pandemic with ease. This spot is in a terrible place, 
receives almost no business, and yet somehow operates day to day with little effort, I  believe 
them to be back channeling money through this establishment somehow and it is likely linked to 
the whole scheme as  it adopts its new puerto rican theme, which  is  a big  hit for jcal’s 
marketing team. They just continue this Puerto rican theme and poverty  theme in the media to 
promote their business while they funnel money and take over key business locations that could 
have been owned  by families of the neighborhood. After the pandemic a  lot of family owned 
businesses disappeared from the neighborhood and were replaced by these people.  This 
business has changed names so many times but it currently was taken over by 787, who just so 
happens to be puerto rican.​



​
Now you are probably wondering why I got involved with Jcal, well  the truth is Jcal’s Joshua 



Weissman has worked for JOY construction, which is his link to dream charter school. They are 
all behind my firing, and the oppression of good landlords in the area. Yes they have collectively 
caused the BNS superintendent to get wrongfully terminated. With major financial pressure 
because my company simply had no means of taking advantage of “non profit” organizations, 
loans, grants, or anything of the sort to financially suspend themselves. You can see how they 
set up their basic network for take over. In fact now this entire collective has turned their back on 
me by blackmailing and harassing my management, only possible with financial leverage from 
the pandemic they benefited off of. ​

​



​



\​



​
As you can see, all this network is so complex but working tight nit together to eventually control 
and take over the poorest area in the bronx, and I bring their dirt to light, because they through 
the use of a school crushed me, my job, and harassed my employer with a spy network of 
people in the neighborhood who have filmed, documented, and slandered my name. Pretending 
I was some kind of monster who had no place in his community simply because they deem the 



mentally ill unfit to have around children.​
​
Enter Carnegie management, who controls the clock tower and built 280 E134th street. ​ They 
are linked to Brookfield as well because all the developers are working together. Carnegie is not 
just a management company, their ties run so deep, its insane, you won't find much on this 
connection but do know. If you notice, IBM is listed too, this will come in later as there is a man 
who is linked to the school and IBM.



 
Carnegie uses Comelit as well just as Brookfield does. This point will come in later as I suspect 
there is collusion as to why after my boss installed carson I was terminated, ​



​
​
The plot to remove parole is so sinister and thought of long ago that they even opened up the 
cayuga center right next to the school with the same construction done by GDI/JOY as the 
building of 24  bruckner is part of where cayuga center rents. Cayuga center sits there with no 
business doing nothing but has been sitting there for YEARS even during a pandemic after the 
smaller building was completely constructed by GDI.  You can see my building in the 
background. Made in puerto rico was at 26 bruckner but they also got removed from their iconic 
spot of previously being club miami, by the same school conglomerate that took my job. Despite 
it fitting the media market stereotype of puerto rican and in a poor district, it was removed 
because quite simply it was not part of the schemer’s plan. I have rarely seen anyone enter this 
building. I am assuming there is a way to enter through the school itself.​
​
Parole had to downsize and no longer rents the 5th floor at 25 bruckner, which was taken over 
by this, of course non-profit organization. Called DFOY. They rent from my landlord, but are 
almost NEVER in the space, in fact I don't even really know what they do, I never really saw 
them operational before my firing. ​
​



​

​
​
The parking lot on 132nd street is a big contingency point for all this. BNS used to have full 
control of 132nd between Lincoln and Alexander, we had a cut out for the back area of 20 
Bruckner but since it was now being opened, dream has now seemed to claim full ownership of 
it even flying their standard besides both entrances. It is a disgrace to my landmark buildings to 
have their parking lot street claimed by another entity. The enemy flies its flag on both sides of 
the street, locked down by gates they put up, taken from my landlord. Previously the street was 
filed to be opened up but somehow dream lands the ability to put up gates on both sides and 
keep it a private street/parking lot, which now had paid parking spots belonging to my boss, 
previously parking was free and we had so many more parking spots, a complete downsize 
done by the school. ​



​
​
​
I am in No way saying that these men are individually responsible but they are simply links and 
key players in chains into the greater scheme of the dastardly plot to control the south bronx. 
The organizations and ties run so deep it's like a huge shadow entity that has attempted to 
financially absorb all of the mott haven/piano district They put up charter schools, put up huge 
buildings, attack landlords with it, and attack people who lived in the neighborhood for years 
with them. Needless to say they hide behind children while damning me to homelessness with 
removal of my job. Where they attack my job on the ground with harassment and gang stalking, 
they attack my landlord with their power, forcing them to break laws and ultimately fire their best 
employee. The only one who stands in their way. They are using Dream Charter school to attack 
me. There are so many connections, I alone am in their way because of my prominent position 
as the super of parole/the landmark buildings of the south bronx, became politically wrapped up 
in a funnel of money that is backing a political figure, while their shared charter school project 
attacks community members, and since they seek to remove parole from around the school “for 
the kids” they needed to get rid of me, the one man who would testify on behalf of all my parole 
members and parolee’s who come quite peacefully so often. ​
​
Deeper into the connection of my original Boss Bradford N swett to lewis katz is where his 
memorial was held, Mrs Swett’s Funeral was held at Abyssinian Baptist Church at 132 West 



138th Street, New York, NY. He is tied to lewis katz and this entity through the Abyssinian 
Development group because he supported the church greatly, what makes this all uncanny is 
Mrs swett was also in the school development industry.​
​
Sheena Wright who has worked at Lewis Katz lawfirm also served as CEO of Abyssinian 
Development group. And since my new bosses were able to buy 14 bruckner which was ran 
over by pigeons since lewis katz was angry at the department of buildings for its excessive 
targeting of him to shut him down, it is very likey the two were friends. ​
​
​

​
Making her linked to both Katz, and Bradford, Oddly she now serves the mayor eric adams, 
which could explain his presence at brookfield properties Bank side. Which was constructed by 
Triton construction which built bankside, I had heckled the mayor the day he arrived. I was 
never a fan of his, and I am certain the man is being blackmailed just as all parties involved are 
likely controlled by their handlers. ​



​
​
​

​
​



​
These men are behind the Dream charter school which has employees who spy, record, and 
stalk their competitors. Since BNS is now on both sides of the new school, they have spied on 
me, harassed my bosses about me, and made me a subject of discrimination of mental illness, 
they do not understand me or know me, they do not know the members of the neighborhood, 
and since they do not agree with my beliefs or how I express myself, they deem me unstable, 
dangerous, and have forced my bosses into wrongfully terminating me, and causing me to suffer 
greatly at the loss of all i worked for and my career. I am losing my home, work, gym, and 
happiness. I have already tried apologizing, I have already tried to make amends but nothing 
works, I have been forced into therapy unwantedly to save my job. I am being a target of heavy 
discrimination of mental health just simply because I am not an ordinary man, and I have beliefs 
and principles and a way of expressing myself that is deemed unfit by their self absorbed 
standards.​
​
These men have directly attacked my life, and likely hate my friends because we often hang out 
in the neighborhood and know everyone. They fear those who know everyone because divide 
and conquer is their strategy for destroying the lives of all the members of the south bronx 
community. I do believe my bosses to be innocent as they are simply trying to protect their 
business and have already made these deals not expecting it to all cause them to lose one of 
their most trusted employees, myself. They hate my alcohol and marijuana use and have fired 
me for using these things in my personal life which is against the law in new york.​
​
Due to the deceptive nature of the deal my bosses have denied knowing them though I heard 
their names out of my bosses mouths a few times. I would not be surprised if these men will 
deny knowing my bosses as well as if they have no clue who I am talking about. EVEN though 
BNS and GDI/JOY/DREAM worked closely to build the school as access to my building was 
necessary for construction. They think I lack memory of it all, they pretend as if I am deranged 
or crazy but the reality of this situation is so big and evil that they would probably take their lies 
to the grave if not for me. They have no problem lying to me because they deem me too 
mentally ill to know the truth. But my bosses are not silly or dumb, they know what these people 
are doing, they just simply could not say no to many of the deals because of the pandemic they 
were not financially able to. ​
​



​
Upon my firing I was heartbroken, hurting, and upset stemming from a terrible hospital incident 
that happened the exact weekend before I was let go, realization that I was being slandered and 
blackmailed despite me feeling it was very wrong to slander or blackmail me about for I spoke 
the truth and knowing that I truly did nothing wrong to be fired, and that my bosses completely 
discriminated against my perceived disability. I was painted to be evil, irrationally and capable of 
criminal activities and worse. I argued with my bosses and tried to work my job anyway for free. 
I was locked out of all my things furthering my suffering. Very few men can ever understand 
what it's like to lose everything you love in a single moment of time, especially when you feel 
righteous about all you spoke and done. I have never done my job poorly and my job is very 
difficult as I am the hardest working man in a 3 man crew. I originally took my anger out on my 
bosses for putting me through this unjustly, but I am simply an at will employee who doesn't 
have the same protections as someone in a union. My bosses lack compassion to see what 
damage has been done to me so they still refuse to give my job back, but they are simply 
protecting what they deem “company interest.” I realized real quickly when my tears and rage 
did not work that something of greater evil was taking place, and more importantly, I realized 
how harsh discrimination of mental illnesses can be. They assumed me to be a criminal, and 
treated me as such, they were so scared of me that they thought me to be capable of harming 
them, attacking them, or being violent. Despite all my suffering, I continued to do the right thing, 
but I spent time researching and learning exactly who was behind this wrongful termination. I 
learned who was really pulling the strings and harassing my management. I figured out what 
financial leverage can do to a company. I knew at that moment that BNS had terminated their 
best employee because of the demands of organizations with more money, and more power.​
​
This is a conspiracy of a great evil plot to control all members of the community via ​
influence from a school. Something that I now am required due to pressure to stand in the way 
of. If they lie when they lie, I worry greatly that justice will not come in the form of LAW. They 
even boast cockily that they have enough evidence to terminate me for job related stuff, a 
fallacy if you knew how well my tenants speak of me, and how little issues my building has due 
to my diligence. Any just opinion of firing me comes not from my job duties, but my personal life 
and conduct based on the destruction of my life and the opinion others have of me based on my 
beliefs and what I deem true. It comes off the heavy hatred of those deemed mentally unwell, 
especially when schools are involved. It speaks volumes to how quickly people can turn on you 
when they find out you have a disability or illness even if simply perceived as having one. Hence 
why I continue to write this Manifesto.​
​
Needless to say they have taken this way too far and on the brink of losing my spot in the south 
Bronx to developers I am now in a final battle for my life, the community, and freedom. These 
men are richer, more powerful, and if they are ruining the lives of people who live in my 
neighborhood, of worse moral character than me, and it is obvious when they have 
constructively destroyed my life through back channels. Now I am at war. These men have 
painted me a monster who does not deserve to live in the neighborhood. Forced my bosses to 
terminate me, showing they do not believe men like me should even have jobs. They despise 
my principles, they hate how I live, and since they could not fire me themselves, they used their 



connections to my bosses to do it. I am just one of many people they will likely target in this 
organized corrupt fashion.​
​
I am aware of the financial suffering and hardship the pandemic brought on my bosses so as 
means to recover, they were left with no choice but to accept the will of the men with money 
who were building relentlessly during a pandemic, while my company’s tenants could barely pay 
rent. However none could foresee the money forcing them to fire their superintendent but that 
day has come. Now I am set forth to save my employers from their enslavement by financial 
dealings, and be reinstated to my job because I deserve to work and the buildings need me, I 
am a free man who self expresses the way he sees fit, I may be mentally ill by the code set by 
the world but I have a right to work because nothing of what I am interferes or has stopped me 
from doing a diligent proper job for 7 and a half years. The same will of these people have 
deemed me evil, monstrous, criminal, and undesirable to have in the neighborhood. I have been 
punished and harmed, broken, and infringed on yet I prove their opinions of me false. I have 
done no crime, I have not destroyed anything, I have remained true to myself. I believe I have a 
right to work my job and be left alone. Simply put, my Job was my life. I am also going to expose 
MANY neighborhood money funnels, corruption, and suspect businesses/operations in my 
neighborhood. Im am certain there is a bigger power that is brutalizing my company that stems 
lots of their profits from my local neighborhood. Simply put, there are people who profited in very 
strange and sudden ways that are not by good work ethic or chance, they are funneling money 
through various non profits, near criminal money laundering, and suspicious business 
operations that receive more grants and free money than they provide service or product for the 
community. ​
​
Within my company lies suspect leases, suspect contractor switches  and an overall change of 
company policy that seemed to force my job to be  under  a position of distress, especially as 
the entity of organizations I was fighting were supplying new money to my bosses. I had 
become a company liability based on the design and beliefs of these people’s Dream. I do 
believe this level of post pandemic extortion to be on a tier of A RICO. ​
​
 My company has switched contractors, their email provider, security service, and many more to 
fit the demands of brookfield who partnered with Microsoft. We used to have our own private 
email server. Now our emails operate  on a verified Microsoft network. This is major as we used 
to have an old email server that worked great for years, even our tech guy switched when 
someone called to help me. The new one couldn't even figure out that the Microsoft suggestions 
were causing the app to crash on my phone when trying to send an email. But it's obvious that 
they would fail the reverse infrastructure integration of our devices, as they upgraded with no 
regard to the workers who were on the ground. I had to figure that one out myself, it's funny that 
they are attempting to use my inability to respond to emails as a point to my termination which I 
have direct proof of. A testimony as well to their lack of understanding of what kind of phone 
their workers use. Microsoft's brookfield partnership is behind the switch. Microsoft is a leader, 
through bill gates, of vaccines so as a result it is obvious why me being unvaxxed in my 
company would be a problem by these people. Since the partnership came around pandemic 
timing, it is the same kind of money that now has me at the brink of losing everything. Around 



October is when we switched to microsoft, two months later, suddenly the flak for my job began, 
that is when the developers began to become critical of my personal life, so to start building the 
case, my management was using the email against me in december.​
​

​
​
My company is using Carson.Live app as security now, I know this ​ the company is 
funded by brookfield ventures as well, through a deceptive partnership led by Comelit. In fact 
the company is so new, and my bosses didn't use their old security guys to upgrade the 
intercom, around this time is when the pressure for my job began. It offers them the ability to 
constantly monitor and watch my buildings from a remote system that I have no clue who truly 
has access to CARSON in shady deals that my company was offered. They first locked me out 
via their digital intercom, but did not count on not surrendering my keys to have entry. It is 
partnered with COMELIT which is the same intercom system that sits exactly outside of 
BANKSIDE which is owned by brookfield. The financial links have created leverage over my 
bosses to convince them that letting me go was proper, sound, or even legal. Their hatred of my 
mental state causes them to do this to me. It is important that I note this because I am sure the 
deals go even deeper but there is a reason they had set up this kind of infrastructure in 
glassworks first. I don't know if they will extend this to 26 or 79 or even rider/canal, but I do know 
it was part of my targeting. I work funny, I am a janitor, I cannot imagine what kind of perceptions 



they have of me off of needless spying. My boss has a right to witness my work and record me. I 
have no problem with it as I do a good job and do no wrong, but I find it highly suspicious that I 
began to take heat about my employment most heavily once Carson was installed. I also know 
that highschool children, and elementary kids are often separated. I believe glassworks may be 
part of a deal to serve the younger children, hence why Brookfield/Dream’s intercom system 
was installed preemptively to fulfill that goal. Since dream intends to serve grades k-12 they will 
likely split the main building to serve highschoolers and utilize glassworks to serve the younger. 
It is also likely why my boss had rented the open space to his worst tenant, and left one vacant. 
It is much easier to get out one tenant from two spaces, especially if it is your worst tenant. This 
may not be the case but it is sensible to say the least. Ironically this tenant services the mentally 
ill members of society, and yes, I get along with these people perfectly.I have now been grouped 
in that category by all developing parties, including my own bosses due to the influence these 
new deals, and investors have. I have attached proof that Carson is funded by comelite, and 
proof that Brookfield uses them as well. The intercom system at 79 and 26 remains unchanged, 
in fact even the code to said buildings remained unchanged, and I technically still have access 
to those buildings, showing how targeted the discrimination is of just the mentally ill employee, 
since my co workers spend more time at 79/26 on the weekdays, while I cover the buildings on 
the weekends.​



​



​
​
​

​
 



​
​



​
On the 3rd floor of rider ave during the pandemic we hosted Kipp’s The knowledge house, Kipp 
is also on the list for dream charter school, this hub doesn't serve many employee’s is usually 
empty, but i had removed an ac for a lady one time, and helped the workers there as well. It is 
strange that this appeared just before the pandemic and stayed during the pandemic and is 
somehow linked to dream charter school as well. There is almost nothing going on here, and I 
am unsure how this space survived the pandemic with absolutely NOTHING going on. Kipp is 
heavily affiliated with george norcross as well. ​

​
​
These men’s financial ties are so common and twisted that even Uber’s Uber sign is held over 
20 Bruckner but a man from Uber sits on the dream’s ambassador group. A sign that ultimately 
they are channeling money directly back to themselves with use of the charter school. You can 



of course see another name from the over represented blackstone group. ​
​

 

​
Black stone of course has partnered deeply with pfizer, thus linking the school to pfizer as  well. 
Adding to the cause I face discrimination for my medical preferences, that have been greatly 
associated with the school. I spoke against the vaccine all my life, and now years later I am 
being fired for expressing myself about it too, most of the community knows I opposed it. I am 
detested by these people in part because I avoided taking the vaccine for the covid 19 
pandemic. Blackstone is also the financial entity behind Norcross and Kat’z previous legal 
battle.​
 

​
​
​
101 Lincoln across the street from my glassworks building is owned by brookfield properties 
using Triton construction, who rented out space during the pandemic, before they had built their 
own office. Another small hand from brookfield properties utilizing our space as per the deeper 
darker connections, now if triton rented to build brookfield properties building, who do you think 
paid for that? More knowledge that BNS was under financial incentive to listen to brookfield 
properties coalition of developers. The people from Triton were very kind to me. In fact I even 
helped many construction workers find a location to use the bathroom as my building was 
always well kept and maintained compared to the porter potties they had on the site. Until 



Brookfield changed our intercom system I was no longer able to help their workers. I think the 
people from Triton were very cool. They quickly rotated out as the pandemic died down, they 
built their own beautiful office in the street level of the new building. This space remains 
unrented and unshown as 3B, it was previously known as 3C within  the building but my bosses 
floor plan says otherwise. Which makes me curious. Many packages for triton arrived months 
after they moved to 101 lincoln, including heavy things like ladders, which I returned to them 
justifiably..My boss threw a big fit when this space was accidentally painted well by ICL, which 
makes me rumor that potentially talks were made to own all 3 spaces. It would be weird for a 
contractor to make this kind of mistake as they are  segmented. Once  we changed the name, 
my bosses rented the old what used to be known as 3B (previously 3C) space out. The names 
were swapped before the lease signage leading the men to make an obvious mistake when 
they did indeed paint a spot labeled 3B. They sit directly across from glassworks. ​
​
This project at 101 lincoln and 2401 third ave, known as bankside, was originally owned and 
developed by Keith Rubenstein and the Chetrit group but brookfield properties took it over in a 
almost criminal robbery/losing deal. Screaming more financial duress/political force caused to 
good landlords by these land grabbers who hide behind the children and their politicians. Of 
course the ones who brokered this deal sit on the dream team of corruption. They are killing all 
old time south bronx real estate companies and submitting them to their whim in almost criminal 
deals. I believe Somerset partners to be victims from this same  corrupt entity that is using the 
NY US 15 Congressional leader to do criminal displacement of the locals and control 
businesses. Just as BNS is a victim. What kind of political leverage do you need to make such a 
losing deal happen, but more importantly you can see why they needed anyone who opposed 
them out of the way. Somerset has been active in the development of the south bronx and have 
been running buildings here for years, making them a target as well for these new developers 
who have politicians in their pockets. ​



​

​



​
​



​
​



​
​
It is no surprise they may be able to rob people and landlords of property when they have even 
members on the court on their Dream team of corruption. I will introduce Jaylen Amaker.



​

​
​
​



Jaylen Amaker has also worked for dream charter school. He currently does volunteer work for 
them but I believe him to be an important member of their court proceedings. 

​
​
​
His Linkin also links him to Alden Millard who still serves where he used to work. It is strange 
that there are so many political and deeper ties to these people placed in positions that all seem 
to link to brookfield properties take over along with their financial groups that are attacking the 
pandemic suffering long term landlords of this community, Their take over is so hostile and 
criminal that none of the deals and actions done to those oppressed make sense. I did not 
deserve to be terminated from my job by a large matrix like connected people who chose to 
defame me in the neighborhood I’ve lived in for years. ​



​
​



​
​
​
​
Lizardos engineering is now behind the Rider and canal upgrade of heat. We never used these 
guys before and that is why the job has been checked out twice, in the past by a different 
engineering team, because I suspect it was part of the deal. Lizados serves both pfizer, and 
NYUlangone, ​I link lizardos to the developers because NyuLangone can be seen operating in 
the neighborhood, I see their trucks all the time. They are somewhere on the waterfront as well 
but it seems they are very secretive as I only see their trucks pass by, however nowadays all 
trucks have switched to the fresh direct logo. They likely hate me because I am unvaccinated as 
well. My bosses know my religious exemption. Which makes me a heavy target of bias and 
unfair treatment. It's suspicious that this partnership with Lizados came out of nowhere while 
NYUlangone operates on the waterfront which is all part of the development dream. I suspect 
these are brookfield properties guys.​





Unrelated to Lizardos engineering, the developer team had already been observing me and  
raised suspicion to my bosses accusing me of harder drug use, a complete lie. A very weird 
event took place the weekend before I got fired from NYULangone’s hospital network. 
NYULangone's hospital team kidnapped me and forced injections against my will with the desire 
to drug test me for substances. I am heavily against medications and injections, but these 
corrupt doctors who are partnered with these developers forced medications on me, and even 
drew my blood for examination. This blood exam I received when I have great religious 
exemptions against it, was done to find harder drugs. When they could not find it, they feared 
me knowing I would crack their dark dealings and shine light to the shadows. It is sad that I 
have experienced that horror to be treated, and harmed against your will by hospitals that claim 
to protect. Picture Hands dragging you down to hell, while you fight, only for them to manifest 
their will completely over you. They had injected me against my will after refusing my request to 
be released. I was suffering great trauma from this incident and recovering from the psychotic 
drugs they pumped into me when the same Monday after that cinco de mayo weekend, I was 
terminated monday the 8th of may. Lizardos is also partnered with pfizer and cushman 
wakefield who brokered that criminal deal for bankside and 101 lincoln. As well as NYULangone 
who forced medical treatment on me to harm me and defile my reputation with my bosses.​
 

​

​
​
​
​



​

 

The NYU link who removed proof of operating by changing the truck logos in my neighborhood 
by changing the trucks is a high level politician who did not serve under Trump for long. His 
name is Gary Cohn. He is linked to IBM which is partnered with brookfield as well.​

​
I am sure there are more connections but some information seems hidden behind paywalls. ​
​
That is why they had started to build a psyche record on me, subjected me to forced psychiatric 
treatment, and sedated and hospitalized me. He is linked to the same charter school that 
blackmailed me /harassed my employer and painted me to be this horrendous criminal monster 
who was capable of harming children. Since they started spreading rumors of me using harder 
drugs, it's they used their network to forcibly treat me, sedate me, give me drugs for those who 
are psychotic, and one to to forget just for the sole purpose of having a deeper medical record 



of me to justify their later power abuse of lincoln hospital which operates in my neighborhood. 
NYULangone hides their operations in my neighborhood quite well, hence why the fresh direct 
trucks who used to bear their logo have been updated upon my exposing of their wrong doings 
in my vicinity. See further down, for a pic of their new converted logo before I expose more truth. ​

​



​
​
​
Their goal was simple, build a psyche case against me so that I would attempt to just call me 
crazy when I revealed the network of their big players and ties. These connections run so deep 
that I am certain that I am being targeted by the “Matrix of the south bronx developers” 
operating through a charter school to influence and control the neighborhood. Hence why they 
even have a lady that planted in the neighborhood operating as community manager, and the 
gang stalked me relentlessly.​
​
​
​
After all the major ordeals I was facing, done to disgrace me and harm my mental state, for 
these people sought to break me. The most important part of this was the blood test they gave 
me in an attempt to find the harder drugs they have accused me of, they had FOUND only ​
ALCOHOL intoxication, but ask my adversaries what their drug of ​choice is, I have revealed all 
of mine. I was fired immediately after the weekend. I spoke about this traumatic experience to 
my boss because the same hospital network had trucks moving in my neighborhood and me 
having to use my bosses insurance to have to cover the torture session. Once I ousted this 
hospital for operating in my neighborhood and wrongfully treating me, they have since switched 
most of their transport truck logos to Fresh direct as I have not seen them for a while but I have 
proof of NYULangone partners operating on my block, through propark mobility. This photo of 
their truck was taken on the corner of Alexander and Bruckner by the smoke shop. In this torture 
session I was given 3 medications, one was an anti  psychotic and a sedative, as well as the 
last one midazolam given later which is intentionally designed to make one forget traumatic 
surgeries/ordeals, It was ineffective on me, I remembered everything they did to me and had 
bruises to prove it. I was held against my will and forcefully medicated despite being rational 



and sane. They defiled me and my religious rights which were against medications and tests all 
to see if I was a heavy drug user. My employer has a copy of this religious exemption which I 
had submitted during the pandemic when vaccination was requested for work, I will quote it 
here. This ordeal only added to the constant heavy persecution I  faced. ​
​
“ I am also deeply against any medical test, any medical procedures related to covid 19. Nose 
swabs and even saliva samples are blasphemous to my lord because they seek man to 
diagnose problems that are unseen physically, unable to be tangible, and beyond the knowledge 
of man. Which is direct competition to god. I believe only in the manifestations of illness and 
physical harm. I do not allow tests to figure things unseen, I only believe in symptoms created in 
the body designed by the lord himself as a forewarning, thus I refuse all testing as it looks for 
things unseen as to reach for god's throne and determine illnesses upon you without sight or 
symptoms. These tests aim to be god, to decide your health, beyond what you can see, beyond 
what you can understand. I believe god has given us all the tools to understand our body.”​
​
In order to hide their operations in the neighborhood after I called them out for my kidnapping, 
they removed the NYU logo and covered the cooperate with a new fresh direct logo that is 
simply just a signboard over the the operated by, and the addition of an updated address. See 
pictures of the trucks below. Since propark is heavily partnered with NYU, it is likely this is just 
use of all company trucks to now service fresh direct, the oddity of this is why did they have their 
logo for so long until i called them out in the neighborhood for what they did to me. Just note 
that even if fresh direct trucks are operated by pro park, why did NYUlangone’s logo only 
disappear after I had called out their scheme. You can see the pictures of how they updated the 
trucks who used to say NYULangone, compared to the original Fresh direct trucks. Propark 
mobility is their truck partner and it serves many different companies including fresh direct and 
NYU hence why I have a picture of NYULangone trucks in my neighborhood. ​



​



​
The updated truck that used to say NYULangone one. You can tell it's been updated because 



the “Operator” location was covered with the new fresh direct sign, and they have an updated 
address compared to the Original trucks which I would include below. ​

​



Here is what the old trucks look like, if you notice the address has been updated once the trucks 
switched from their NYU operations.​





​
Before I move any further let's talk about fresh direct for a bit which was introduced into this 
neighborhood. It is also covered by Bronxnet as well. So the connection is there and all will 
make more sense. Remember bronx net is supported by the Office of the bronx borough 
president, you can see their logo on the original bronx net image. Just adding this one here to 
show bronx net supports fresh directs endeavors. ​



​
Lets go on lobbying to get fresh direct into the neighborhood before I drop the medical trauma I 
received. . ​
​



​



​
As you can see the office of the borough president is represented by bronx net, and fresh direct 
lobbied with the borough president.​
Now who is the current borough president? ​

​



​
Now lets talk about her link to thinkcubator, the spot that does absolutely nothing but gets free 
money and somehow earns ridiculous amounts of money. Somehow, she ends up featured on a 
thinkubator report, I’ll provide proof here. ​

​
So it's no surprise that this coalition who are all linked all work together to support each other, 
while they pretend not to be lobbyists, racketeering, laundering money, and using said leverage 
over good landlords, workers, and people who have lived in my neighborhood for years. I had 
gotten on the wrong side of all these people because I was vocal and spoke out against their 
network, and I knew exactly what they were up to. So they had no choice but to torture me, 
remove my job, and remove me because of their goal to remove parole. Needless to say these 
politicians are in their pockets. ​
​
​
​



​
​
I tried to confide in my bosses about what happened to me in that hospital but they refused to 
listen and instead just hit me with my termination paper, because at the time I was already 
deemed a mentally unstable as a person. Driving me further down into misery, I was happy and 
loved my job. The darker forces that were behind recording and slandering me had won over 
the hearts of my bosses and they were too ignorant to see the levels of corruption power has. I 
was deemed unstable to make my own medical choices by that hospital so they forced their will 
on me. I could only describe it to my bosses as being 51/50’d which was probably a bad choice 
of words but their opinion of me was already so tarnished by the campaign of defamation that 
was launched by gang stalkers that served the interest of their ‘new investors'. I don't really 
have that many people to talk to so I considered my bosses to be some of my closest friends 
and I always treated them as such. In fact I had so much love for them, I trusted them to protect 
me from anything and anyone who sought to discredit my work or defame me. They have 
chosen these new investors' sides. And have deemed me a monster. The punishment I faced as 
a result has been so unjust and without right.  By having this on my hospital record they are able 
to justify my abuse as well, which involved a later 36 hour stay I was forced to endure at Lincoln 
hospital. Witthout drugs in my system, and knowing that I was a man who would stand against 
them without an exploitable criticism point like hard drugs, I had invoked true fear into their 
hearts. ​
​
As a result these investors had sent their locksmith who locked me out of my glassworks 
buildings and store rooms and digitally changed the intercom which was controlled by Carson to 



keep me from access. We use manor gates for all locksmith related things, Ivan/Manny are my 
favorite locksmith brothers. I have seen the new man who changed my locks, he has no 
affiliation to my company from what I knew at the time. Due to the difference in contractors, not 
even my co-workers were alerted or made aware. In fact nobody had the keys available or 
ready when I went to repair my brakes, I was left unable to change my rear brakes, I couldn't 
repair my car properly, as I was locked out of my personal mechanic shop that I host in the 
building, if I served a building diligently for years, why have I been locked out? On top of it all, 
the man who changed the lock failed to properly install the back end, as a result anyone who 
came down that staircase was not able to exit, a blatant fire hazard that I took very deep into my 
heart as my duty to the building was unmatched and I couldn't believe that when they changed 
my lock, they had failed my tenants and guest too. I felt as if my building's integrity was defiled, 
a testimony to my love of my job and building. My bosses were even unaware as to who had the 
keys as this locksmith did not drop them off with my co worker, nor give them directly to my 
bosses, he had to retrieve them later that following monday. I made a big deal about this to my 
bosses because I was already locked out from work, I had entered through a different entrance, 
I did not use force or illegal access. It pained me to see my building be damaged by some other 
entity who sent their own men to do this to me. What is so odd about this is why did neither my 
bosses nor my co workers have the key, it made it obvious to me that it was not their doing, it 
was simply done on request of the same collaboration of people that have sought to force my 
bosses wrongful termination of me. There is no way this man is of our original locksmiths 
because our original know godfrey and michael well, and they likely would have never made a 
mistake that resulted in a fire hazard.​
​

​
​
Almost all of the development here in the south Bronx is tied to the same influencers and 
investors. I am at war against things bigger than I could ever imagine for a simple humble living 
within this community. I was put on the front lines when I spoke publicly against dream charter 
school publicly, and now they have collectively, maybe inadvertently, come for my job, life 
among my peers and friends, and home.​
​
The following would likely only be able to be verifiable by business records.​
​



 Our sprinkler company was switched to capitol sprinkler, which I know is operating in the dream 
school as well. Before this we never used Capitol we had made the switch recently. While it may 
just be a switch the nature of removing our old guy was suspicious as he served my company 
for longer than I have. I have seen this capitol sprinkler operate for the school, I am not ignorant 
and I paid close attention to realize that out of nowhere my company was suddenly sharing the 
same contractors that were recently introduced to our dwelling. Atlantic Fire was our original, 
and part of the deal is the corrupt changing of contractors to destroy our family image. BNS was 
one of the most family oriented and friendly companies, it is a shame to watch them sell out.​
​
 Capstantax was recently introduced into my company as well. I suspect that they too are 
sleeping with brookfield properties. I used to carry all of our heavy tax boxes down 4 and 
sometimes 3 flights of stairs. I did this as a favor and duty to my company, but now our taxes are 
being handled by a third party, which is unheard of as we had a man in the office who 
specialized in that ordeal and did his due diligence. I would not be surprised. They know deep 
down they would never find a man who would do that for 7 years, as most men these days are 
winded off a simple flight of stairs. Ziv Carmel, who is a major player in the company, inspected 
both the piano factory and glass works, because his company is now in charge of our taxes. Ziv 
Carmel is a very cool dude, but if I had known that my company was being taken over at our 
critical time as the south Bronx develops, by the same big deal players, I would have asked him 
the right questions. We enjoyed small talk, and I actually like the guy.​
​
The company that used to service our gates before the swap was United Door/New york door, 
now this new company I have no clue who they are. Dream seeks full control of the parking lot, 
on 132nd street which is why many of my parole officers had a very hard time accessing it. On 
my side, the glassworks building, I have given them all the information and loop holes so that 
they could easily conduct whatever Parole business they could. Since the sally port in the back 
parking lot by my building is used to take parolee’s who violated, to jail by picking them up in a 
gated area for easy transportation and a reduced fleeing rate. It is a critical part of their job so 
using the keypad and a trick with the sensor, they could easily get into the parking lot when 
needed. I even left the padlock open as a favor to all the men who worked within dream 
showing them the means of entry as well, hated me over the parking lot, despite how easy I 
made it to enter, and how little trouble I made for him when he and many other employees' 
parked wherever they wanted, including even in my spot designated to the BNS 
SUPERINTENDENT, which was me. How foolish I didn't see that BNS in the image I originally 
worked for did not exist. They have used this contract of the gate to control more dealings within 
the parking lot, hence why people have to pay for a parking spot now, and our number of spots 
have been reduced. I previously designed the parking lot on my side to offer space to 7 cars, 
One for each tenant and including many spots for parole’s bureau chiefs.Now it currently only 
fits 4 on the 14 side, and many spots on the 26 side were removed as well. More evidence that 
the organizations involved had more power over my management than I previously thought.​
​
If triton was building brookfield’s property and rented one of my spaces, why would my bosses 
pretend not to know brookfield when so many contractors have switched, its because brookfield 
is feeding us money to have financial leverage over us by switching of contractors, which 



resulted in them using said leverage to remove their opposition, the BNS superintendent of 7 
and a half years. Eventually said leverage will be used to remove parole, and control whoever 
BNS rents to. Which also allows it to line up perfectly for the school’s plan to potentially use my 
building glass works for the students hence why the 79/26 piano factory’s old intercom system 
was not replaced. I still have the code to this building and can enter whenever I want, but my 
bosses dont want me in there, and I have NEVER sabotaged any of my buildings during this 
horrible time of unemployment. ​
 

 On top of the control for 132nd street a new building is being constructed soon on the opposite 
side of my gate, the permits for 180 E 132nd street have already been obtained. You can see 
my beautiful glass works building on the left of this photo as well as my old 7 car set up in the 
parking lot which has now been down sized to 4. Careinge management is behind this new 
building that is why I also mentioned them in this network of developers who are doing this 
extreme take over. I will expose the architect connection next. This is just an example of the city 
based power these entities have over my company. ​



 ​



​
​
​
​
If you can't tell from this picture, the architect is connected to this nonsense network of taking 
over the poorest district in the bronx, through a large development of towers called the Arches, 
the Arches are managed by Chess Builders LLC. It's just all the same people working together 
to take over the neighborhood, using all their business ties against me, my management, and 



OTHER management/private owners who have held and maintained their buildings for years. ​

 

​
My bosses may be even unaware of all the financial implications these entities have but they 
know many, and have lied to me about who they knew, but I wondered explicitly who is 
slandering my name. On top of that my bosses drove me further into despair when they 
pretended not to know any of these people or connections, Especially when they denied 
knowing charlie, jorge, and eli weiss when I knew GDI worked with BNS as access to our 
buildings were needed, and I even heard them talking about meetings over a christmas dinner. 
Needless to say the plan to terminate me was long in effect, and I was very much aware. 
However, I work so well and diligently. They had no work related reasons to fire me, in fact they 
are simply doing it because of money, and to gain approval from this network of powerful 
people. So I had to pin down the network and how far politically it went up. ​
​
BNS has been heavily pressured by the south Bronx developers and their affiliates and thus 
these developers have used that leverage to destroy my life with shadow operations. Since our 
company hardships caused by the pandemic, they have done their best to continue operations, 
often tapping into building financial resources. When these developers of the waterfront met 
with them, they offered them a deal they could not refuse due to their hardships, and it 
eventually led to my wrongful termination. On top of it all, my bosses are getting ready to retire.​
​



I have 4 Main bosses.​
​

​
First is the CEO of the corporation Mark brookes, Mark brookes is a man who thinks life is a 
movie, he made a killing when he married into the bradford N swett family as he became the 
head of who runs things in the office, he is the only boss ignorant to not see how money could 
control the company. He is the only one who signed my termination paper, and honestly his wife 
would be ashamed of him if she knew what he was doing. You can see what type of character 
marries into a family, I suspect him to be moraless, as he fired his hardest working man. He 
signed my termination paper with no shame and talks about “firing” people for less as if a man 
who marries into a family for money has a care in the world about a working man. He also plans 
to retire within the next 10 years. He attempted to use Anthony as the fall guy for my firing. He 
knows he is no man and thus hates me with such malice he doesn't care to make me homeless, 
and he would never tell his wife what they did to Danny Longmore’s friend. ​
​
Chris Boyle pops up into the building around 11 o clock or 12, he keeps pretty standard hours 
but he is kind with a slight temper sometimes, but I never expected him to be the type to throw 
me out for money. He plans to retire within the next 5 years or so since he is the eldest of them 
all.. Chris boyle has no clue the amount of work I do because he doesn't really check anything 
when he stops by. He simply goes to check if Michael and Godfrey are in and knows that I am 
working hard. He has always stated that my work wasn't the issue of my firing and that there 
were bigger players involved, but he didn't expect me to know them by name. Or me to find out 
his opposition's money laundering scheme. He is under financial duress from these guys and 
since he needs to retire soon, he took a deal he could not refuse because the pandemic scared 



him so bad when they started to go under due to nobody paying rent. At least Chris Boyle talks 
to his wife about me. He is quite older than all of my bosses. And he would never sign my 
termination paper. He knows how good of a job I do.​
​
Anthony Reinglass is one of the greatest men ever, they had pinned me against him on purpose 
by putting him as temporary manager to my residential building. However he resigned and 
retired and left his position because he doesn't believe that bns should have sold out like this, 
and he also never agreed with my firing. Thus after summoning me to housing court he left the 
company to help me keep my house. I had gotten angry at him for telling me I would never get 
my job back. He had gotten sick of real estate and if I am correct has moved to Florida like he 
wanted, he is a true patriot of America like I am.​
​
Brad Barr is an amazing man, he operates the finance and knows how much money I have 
saved the company. I know he knows that the pathetic 6400 dollars the developers put on my 
head was supposed to buy me out. But I never worked for money, and that is why I rarely asked 
Brad for a raise. I have saved the company so much money that by firing me they have already 
spent more than my firing date to year end salary. ​
​
They seek full control of the waterfront, and they also desire to control the landmark  buildings 
we have by controlling who rents it, Glass works and the Piano factory, by back dooring my 
company in some crazy hostile take over, which in my opinion operates on a high level of 
criminality. They are using the school to even potentially remove Parole (One of our largest 
renting tenants) from the area which is part of their sinister plan.​
​
This is an attack on all community members who have been here for years. These men are 
operating in secret. Thus they had their gang stalkers record me and documented me, 
presented defaming, slanderous, and false accusations as well as information about my private 
life and friends in private contact via email/phone calls/text with my bosses so much to the point 
where my bosses thought me to be capable of violent crime toward them, and even to sabotage 
the buildings I love. The slander of my character is evident by their police escorted removal of 
me from the gym on May 11th which by my termination letter my benefits should have ended on 
the 7th of june, and it states nothing of me not being allowed into my buildings. At the time of my 
removal, my bosses deemed me so dangerously evil that despite them being at the building 
while I was exercising, they refused to see me out of fear. Fear is a form of discrimination when 
all know I am a peaceful man who is capable of being rational, even when angry.  Why would a 
man who served a building of nearly 8 years be capable of destroying the same things he 
loved? Worse, why would I harm the men who give me employment, and who I care for deeply, 
who I always felt I could trust. The truth is they knew everything they were doing to me is evil 
and it's so painful that it could have easily brought a man of moral character and even without 
my questionable sanity to do horrible things. Other supers who they have let go took full 
advantage of stealing company property, and even sabotaging the boiler room. I remember 
these stories because they were told to me by my late co-worker, Danny Longmore. My 
personal character was attacked so heavily that even my bosses thought I was capable of 
harming them. It's true we live in a world where men like me, who have nobody, who work hard 



jobs, and lose everything they love in a moment often are driven into madness. I was in a 
madness state but I am no criminal, I am not evil, and this only fueled me further to figure out 
exactly what was truly happening to me. In fact my love for the buildings triumphs even the love 
I have for myself sometimes as I often sacrifice to ensure that the building runs efficiently, 
spending some of my own money, and utilizing my time to maintain it. I loved my buildings, and I 
loved my bosses, despite all the sinister treatment, I have remained lawful. I may be insane but I 
am not evil, and none of my mental state has ever interfered with me doing my job. I live alone, 
have no kids, and I work hard, and work out, it's all I have ever known and done.​
​
The men in this matrix-like network who pretended to be looking out for my company with new 
deals are guilty for suggesting the belief to my bosses that I was a user of harder drugs. They 
are guilty for convincing my boss that I am irrational, they are guilty for causing my termination. 
This is why when they brutalized me in the hospital and did not find any, I tried to speak to my 
bosses about what happened to me, and I was terminated. They are guilty of spreading the 
belief that I was a demon who would be executing his revenge in illegal, vandal, or criminal 
fashion. I just wanted to work and be left alone. They are guilty for tricking my bosses into 
suggesting/forcing therapy on me over my job, they are guilty for getting my bosses to 
wrongfully terminate me in the first place. They are guilty of causing extreme discrimination of 
my mental illness, but so are my bosses for not believing in me. I still after all the abuse, crave 
my job back, it means the world to me, and if I am so deranged that I am mentally unstable and 
unfit for the world, what better place for me to be than in the neighborhood that accepts me and 
besides my bosses who know me, doing a job that I am capable of.​
​
My bosses have not provided evidence or shown me any videos they have of me, but have 
attempted to use it in discussions in meetings about my termination. The footage originates from 
dream charter school spies, which I can validate from the fact that even their community 
relationship manager had threatened me with releasing the videos explicitly when I took a 
secondary public stance to defend myself and she had come out with 3 other workers to 
intimidate me. Self expression comes in many forms and having my level of passion is one of 
them. My final words when my boss confronted me about the recordings was if there was audio, 
and I said if there was audio everyone would see I was telling the truth. On top of attempting to 
confide in them about my hospital ordeal.That is when I was handed my termination letter. I 
have signed no agreement to my termination and now I have been sent to battle these 
developers who used the school to force mental illness discrimination on me, arrest me to try 
and build a psyche case, and force my employer to terminate me after attempting to force me 
into therapy which i denied, then tried in order of hopes of getting my job back. If being 
threatened to be arrested had sparked my “illness' ' to show, what good is using footage of my 
mental breakdown as grounds to fire me? I believe the harassment my bosses faced with said 
video to be cruel to both them and me. If I supposedly had a mental breakdown off the clock in 
my neighborhood, there is no grounds to even begin firing over conduct. I did not perform such 
conduct on the job. If I was standing up against unlawful arrest as I was, what better moral 
principles do I have? If I asked peacefully, did no crime, and did nothing unlawful when I 
protested, what good can they stop me for? If alcohol use was the issue then all should know 
the following: It is illegal to terminate employee’s over use of alcohol, especially when use had 



not interfered with their job, and use took place off work hours. The treatment of me is only fair 
based on a social agenda and perception that I do not fit in with. My socialization, my personal 
quirks, and behavior, are not proper legal or moral grounds for my termination, especially when I 
have done nothing but be a free man in america.​
​
 I asked to be trialed by the family and before all the company members, and even my tenants. I 
was denied this request, that is when my suspicions aroused and I figured out exactly who had 
bent over my company. Especially when my bosses have told my co-workers in private 
conversations that it was not their sole decision, and that there were bigger players involved in 
this decision which was unjust, they will deny this, but the biggest players were simply 
shareholders. When they attempt to force me into therapy, and tell my co workers that I need 
help, it is obvious they are discriminating against me and taking my job because I am a paranoid 
schizophrenic to them, and even if I was, it doesnt matter because I did my job well and I didnt 
deserve this torture, and I didnt want to lose my job, losing my job was my worst nightmare.​
​
 I had then made it my quest to find these bigger players. I even attempted to apologize to these 
bigger players but they refused to aid me in getting my job back. They knew if they kept me in 
my job position long enough, I would eventually figure out more about the terrible ways they 
operate to control the neighborhood, or maybe at least learned how discriminatory they would 
be toward the mentally ill. If I kept working, the mountain of evidence of their corruption, greed, 
and hostility toward all residents would grow. They hate me for several reasons, my beliefs, my 
self expression, but more importantly they hate the fact that I am friends with those who they 
deem degenerates to society. Why would my employer not let me be? If they had bigger players 
to submit to, what is the deal? It's because they have to play along with bigger players with 
more financial leverage. I am protecting my company where they failed to protect me. That's 
ultimately why my termination is up and about. I do not behave in a manner that the school feels 
is reputable for them, yet they do not know me outside of their projections of my self expression. 
They do not hear me or speak my truth, nor will they listen to those who know me to tell the 
truth. The school deemed me a demon, only because of their own hatred and need to persecute 
mentally ill individuals. ​
​
​
​
They have terminated my job simply because of my use of speech and what I believe in and 
how I live personally in the community. They hate me for my behavior which is deemed mentally 
ill. One fact that proves deeper discrimination is the fact that I continued my job after the main 
blackmail incident for approximately 3 weeks, until bigger calls were made. Never once were 
true duties to the job in question, words both my co-workers and bosses have spoken until they 
had received more pressure from these groups to switch up and fire me. This is an extreme 
violation of moral law and what doing the right thing is. If I did a good job, do I deserve to lose 
my livelihood and living? I can prove that dream charter school is even willing to use blackmail 
through their treatment of me with recordings of me through various private life activities, I can 
prove they had deals that caused my termination, and most importantly my situation is all proof 
that because I have the symptoms of what the world wants to call schizophrenia they hate me, 



despite me living all my life like this. Yet when pushed to the near brink of losing everything, 
forced to clear out my belongings they held hostage under lock  and key, losing everything, 
being without pay, and unable to get unemployment due to fraud, escorted out of my sanctuary 
home gym by police, and thrown into asylum by lies of the school, I have done nothing but stand 
before court rooms to defend my apartment.​
​
​
They knew they would be successful in this route but did not count on me having known my 
enemies. Black mail only controls those who are embarrassed about what they do and have 
done, however through loose channels and spying they painted me as mentally unstable and 
pinned my job between getting medical help, forcing me to take leave and receive therapy which 
did not result in my employment being reinstated. It is illegal in New York state to fire people 
based on mental illness, this is the truth. The developers convinced my bosses to pin me 
between therapy and my job, knowing how much I hate the medical industry, their affiliates 
blamed alcohol use, but when I remained sober I still couldn't get my job back. I do not know if 
it's even legal to control someone’s personal life in this manner for a job, but I was willing to give 
up alcohol if it meant I could work. Proof of my undying love for my job and current state of life. ​
​
The main event in this cascade of slander and defamation, in late/mid april, I took to the streets 
and performed the greatest protest known in the south bronx, in fact it is so well known that I 
have seen no recordings of it, yet all know it happened, and these recordings have been used to 
blackmail my employer into firing me. I do not want to live in a world where self expression is 
banned, and you must operate in a perfect manner of behavior that is controlled by not you, but 
others criticism of such. I feel all humans have a right to self expression and the cell phone was 
used to encourage my boss to get rid of me, a single moment of time nor defines my character, 
but to have shoved me with arrest threats that day and not see me arrested, they punished me 
with termination and other cruelty as a monstrous conglomerate that was not meant to be seen, 
but who would want to do that to me? Why is my boss not protecting me from these people who 
have connections at dream charter school? It seems like financial leverage would be an 
incentive. That's why AA wasn’t good enough. I was also exhibiting the right to use free speech, 
something that is protected by our own bill of rights. I had conducted no crime, and no arrest or 
punishment was made to me until higher ups began to continue to defame me and cost me my 
job, all done to me on purpose with direct intent of ruining my life. The emotional distress they 
knew it would cause me, only allowed me to further prove my moral and principle integrity. The 
monster they see and saw in me simply is a figment of their imaginative creation, for their goal 
of terminating my life. It is a completely falsified matrix-like attack of powerful networks who 
seek to control the community by removing anyone who does not fit into their social standard. I 
am well aware of this, and I stand in the way of this, because I am friends with many on their list 
of people to remove being all the mentally ill, homeless, and even crackheads and criminals. 
Being in one of the most prominent positions as the superintendent of Glass works, and the 
Piano Factory. They know if they can get away with this, they will have full control to fire, 
remove, or damage the reputation of anyone enough to get them exiled. ​
​
I knew this was a hoax to demonize me because if anyone bore true witness they would've 



known I was a sensible man. Many and all my community members know me as a sensible 
honest man. Plus the proximity of my life being close to my job, they sought to control me, they 
did not expect me to combat for my freedom. In fact they even didn't expect a silly super, who 
mops, sweeps, and fixes things to be logical, versed, and well able to combat evil with truth and 
words. They have set a stage to fire me on the simple grounds that I am too mentally unstable 
to be around a school, and too unstable to work my job, both of which are a fallacy because all 
the community know I am a rational and peaceful man. I had done the job for 7 and a half years, 
and my “mental illness” is still the same “mental illness” I’ve lived with all my life. I do not even 
consider my mindstate to be ill, I am simply me, how the world perceives me is on them. Yet I 
was told to get help, which was simply to control my behavior, and control my thoughts. Each 
therapist I visited wanted to medicate me, hurting me emotionally even further. The best help I 
have received was alcoholic anonymous who inspired me greatly to quit drinking to save my job, 
a task that I easily handled and remained sober for over 30 days in order to battle properly and 
as wisely as I can by working with my employer to get my job back. None of it worked. ​
​
I have even helped many teenangers from Dream. I do believe many of the youth to be 
welcome, and I protect them greatly. I know what it is like to be young, and I am not a bad 
example or danger to the youth, yet many from Dream will pretend this is the case, especially 
when my own bosses have thrown me under the bus. I’ve patched up wounds, given wisdom, 
and have been a great example of a man with principles and morals. In fact I do believe that the 
school will hate me for simply existing around children because deep down they are using the 
school to influence the community members and I suspect the students to have been on my 
side when I protested the arrest of my community member who was deemed mentally unstable. 
Many people from the community actively avoid the school, do not want to get involved, and 
fear it because of the powers it has. ​
​
A display of their level of power was a secondary stand on June 13th, i got in contact with 
dream the only way i  know how, with the same discrimination they hate, i spoke my truth on the 
corner outside of where I live, and surely enough I got to speak to the community relations 
manager at dream after spilling all the trauma they did to me including taking my job, rather than 
face up to it, they locked me up in Lincoln hospitals mental health holding area for 36 hours. 
Lying and slandering my name again, pretending I was intoxicated with alcohol once again. 
They lied saying I was harassing kids when I was openly speaking to the public around me, 
practicing free speech.  By pretending my intoxication they justified my arrest and holding. They 
lied. Police body cam will prove that I even requested a breathalizer because I knew they would 
be lying. All the footage is recorded, there is no intoxication in my voice, I even mentioned in my 
stance when I do it sober what will they say. They even pretended I was in front of the school 
but in reality I was on the same corner of alexander and Bruckner, they lied to the psychiatrist 
too. Resulting in my extended stay of 36 hours. This level of cruelty was only done to me so that 
when I released this project they would attempt to paint me as illogical, a complete fallacy. If 
they could repeat this strategy of locking good community members up, and using their matrix 
network to spy and attack them as opposition, they will. I am only one of the many members of 
the community who has/will lose their spot and job if this isn't rectified and known. It comes from 
a matrix-like business entity that profited in near criminal ways and has pocketed politicians for 



the takeover of the Piano District. ​
​
I am not just fighting for myself or a job. I am attempting to save all the community serving 
landlords, and families that lived here for years from people who have no idea what the Bronx 
really is. My 36 Hour sentence in Lincoln hospital taught me that it operated just like a prison for 
thought  and behavior control. I found many of the people there to be more god fearing, moral, 
and kinder than these men who do corrupt business for the sole purpose of taking over poor  
neighborhoods. But I also knew that even at what is considered the lowest tier of humanity, 
these men and women who were in the ward with me, belonged with their families, friends, and 
loved ones who could care and understand them. I will fight the battle of freedom and self 
expression, as well as the right to be who you are for eternity. The truth is the school had 
enough power over this ward to cause what should have been an hour stay extended to a 36 
hour psych evaluation. Simply because they were a school. This kind of police force leverage 
comes in so handy when opposition speaks out against you. You can simply lock them up for 
doing no crime, which is what they did, they hate being ousted for their activities for all to judge, 
because unlike me, it will be their own actions that make them look bad, where mine are simply 
a twisted perversion of the truth they would like others to pretend to see.​
​
The irony is there was a lady with a microphone protesting the school but she was not locked 
up, or arrested like me. The day she did this was Monday, June 26th. Since they could not use 
her behavior neighborhood quirks against her, she was left alone.​
​
​
All my job duties have been done properly for years. Better yet as I battle them with words, I 
only make more and more sense. It is very sad that we will eventually live in a world that polices 
everything you do and cast their own judgment on whether or not you should live, or live in exile. 
I have been sentenced to exile for fighting for the freedom of all my neighbors by those who 
develop and plan neighborhoods. I have been deemed unworthy but I refuse this damnation. I 
will be trialed before the people if anything. I believe that part of the reason I am targeted is the 
day my protest was launched, the children stood with the man who was arrested, and likely 
caused turmoil with the staff over his arrest, he was cleared of all charges and freed two days 
later in what i considered the most beautiful display of how proper the law could be, and how 
scared dream charter school really is about the truth behind their dealings. I cannot prove this 
solely on my own, but I am certain it was when they explicitly started to attempt to get me 
removed from my job. Staff of the school threatened to arrest me before I began my first protest, 
after I had gone to the school nicely to tell them to help take leniency on my friend. They thought 
I would do nothing with the threat, but the threat reminded me to stand up on principle. So when 
I finished my 3 hour protest for my friends freedom, which resulted in no arrest of me, no 
punishment of me, they decided to blackmail me with footage taken out of context, and harass 
my bosses into deeming me a monster. I know they are behind the footage because when I 
performed my secondary stance they confessed to having footage of me. Staff will deny the 
original threat that they spoke to me over the phone. But were fully able to take advantage of 
this power the second time I stood up to them on the corner of Alexander and bruckner.​
​



Brookfield/Dream charter/Maddrealities/Joy construction and a massive network of developers 
are behind this since I stood against their arrest and torment of community members with the 
school. They used the way I expressed myself to deem me a Devilish character who was 
capable of crime and harming children as they seek to control the whole parking lot on 132nd 
street, and the Bruckner blvd between Alexander and Lincoln for school buses.  Yet they bid on 
parking spots which are sold on payment for all my tenants in both the piano factory and the 
glassworks building. I am highly upset that as a result of the schools take over, I am being 
bound to homelessness, was removed from my gym with police force, and my property was 
placed on lock and key despite my job benefits ending June 7th, to add to my misery and pain, 
they have decided to terminate my phone on May 23rd as well as my parking spot, they even 
have gone as far to pay me a measly 140 dollars from a check that used to be 1200ish every 
two weeks. I am still working at 129 Alexander because my co-workers cannot begin to handle 
my workload. One is nearing retirement age, and the other does not share the same love for the 
buildings or skills I have. They have only  recently been paying our cleaning company to take 
out garbage. I am still  repairing, and doing my best to perform daily duties for the building as I 
am since I lived in this apartment for 7 and a half years as its rightful superintendent. My boss 
simply sided with the school out of fear, and through that same fear the bosses justified their 
poor treatment of me and discrimination of my perceived mental illness.​
​
The original plan was to have me take two paid weeks off to require/force me into therapy, 
something not legal, but once I refused, they looked for any reason to terminate me because the 
discrimination was already deeply rooted in their hearts from these stalkers, and harassment 
done to them by the school. After that I said I would go in hopes of getting my job back.Yet they 
preemptively stopped my checks. I have received no check since, and to top it all off a false 
unemployment claim was filed on my name to deceive my bosses into not trusting me. whether 
this is related or not is up to suspicions but given all I have gone through I do not doubt it was. 
On the day my phone line was terminated my bank card was also hit with fraudulent charges 
which may or may not be related. This was filed simply so that it would be impossible to 
reconcile things with my management. I did not collect unemployment as I truly believed in 
getting my job back, and I still do, I have held out financially as long as I could, and am currently 
attempting to try to receive it as of 6/20/23. It feels wrong as I simply deserve my job back, but 
given they have forced me out of work, I no longer have a choice.. I had gotten help from 
alcoholic anonymous known as AA and on June 7th I was already 20 days sober, perfectly in 
line with a month of leave to supposedly “fix myself”. AA helped me a lot because unlike the 
forced therapy, they did not seek to medicate me, they had only given me the advice I needed.​
​



​
​
 I have done no wrong on the job and I am fighting my wrongful termination on behalf of all my 
tenants, on behalf of those who do not believe that people should be persecuted for their private 
life, and for my community's freedom from the unnecessary and targeted harassment done by 
the new charter school and the displacement of businesses and people by developers who do 
not truly seek the betterment of the neighborhood. I am also battling for freedom for those 
mentally ill to have a place in society and work especially when they have been doing it with a 
proven track record for years. I did not need help, I simply needed my job and to be left alone. I 
was not failing job duties, they had begun to pretend I was while pretending to be ignorant of all 
the other failings going on, while lying to me about the new network of partners. I was the 
hardest man working in the 3 man crew and I created tolerance and leadway for all my other 
co-workers because I understood the buildings and truly loved my job. I was made a specific 
target because of who I was mentally, spiritually and my beliefs, and from a school that provided 
defamation against using it against me to harass my employer.​
​
Their greed is unmatched and they have zero issue crushing lives, businesses, and taking over 
landlords going through financial hardship caused by a pandemic which they profit off. I am one 
if not the only man left brave enough and tactically placed in a position where I could prove all 
things.​
​
They claim I am mentally unwell yet when pushed to the breaking point of police escorts out of 
my gym I've done no crime, when pushed with my belongings held hostage I did not steal them 
back, when facing possible eviction from my rightful place in the south Bronx, I simply am going 
to face whatever happens to save my life from destruction, protect my company, and serve both 
my employer and the neighborhood. When stalked and recorded constantly, I did not lash out at 
my recording stalkers. They sought a target they deemed mentally unwell and attempted to 
make him a criminal. They were unjustly punishing me and pushing me toward crime or maybe 



even suicide. Even after being sentenced to 36 hours in a psyche ward, I came out and have 
done no crime. The level of cruelty I am facing is more than enough to jeopardize someone’s 
emotional well being so badly that they would never recover mentally, commit crime or revenge, 
and cause them to break. However I am strong and I remain hopeful that I will indeed get my job 
back, it is all I want from life, and I am willing to continue to battle for it. My bosses asked me to 
sign a release form which i refused because they wrote it not to protect or help me, my life here, 
and all my plans, all my friends, all my work, and all I’ve done for my buildings, and how much I 
have loved my buildings, I refuse wholeheartedly to sign my job away. I refuse to lose my job, I 
do not deserve to, and I know for a fact I do not. This is not sent to me on BNS’s accord. My 
company would have never fired me, because when it came to the pressures of the world with 
covid vaccination, they accepted my religious exemption, and made no effort to rid my 
employment because I was too valuable to the company to lose. What is happening to me now 
is coming from someone else's accord. I was too valuable of a company asset to lose and I still 
am given my experience of 7 and a half years working the same job. ​
​
​
No matter what they have already failed this mission, as all know me, know me, and how I 
behave is not up to their decision to control. My bosses were pressured into asking me to go to 
therapy/medical treatment to keep my job, an idea suggested by the same ones who demonized 
me simply because the developers seek to silence me with recordings sent to my boss. Yet 
whenever job duty called I had always completed any task asked by my boss. I even still work 
after this incident to fix things and take out garbage as well as clean the building I live in..I have 
made every attempt to rectify the situation, I have made every attempt to compromise, and yet 
here I am still asking for the same thing, my job. I do not believe there is a single person who 
would battle this hard to keep a job, but this job is my right as long as I work well. I am receiving 
unfair treatment by them and I can easily prove it based on the fact I was the hardest working 
man on a 3 man squad. ​
​
 I am not going to go quietly into the night, and soon all will be revealed and I will be vindicated. 
I seek to return to my job without the fear of wrongful termination, with full freedom to express 
myself in my life. Oftentimes I may walk around and appear to be talking to myself but I am 
talking with god, self expressing and relieving myself of stress that comes with life, none of this 
is illegal, and if that makes me mentally unwell, so be it, but it is not just or fair to terminate my 
employment on these grounds. I seek BNS to have the same power over its own decisions as it 
used to have. Should I have failed my duties on the job, I would have gladly accepted my 
termination but I was not fired over my work. This is an attack on my life and principles. It is 
retaliation based on the fact that I protested the arrest of a 10 year long community member 
who chooses to live in his car that was done by a school I consider the developers’ new power 
tool. It is pressure of them dropping out of financial dealings with BNS that have forced my 
bosses hands as well. The evil developers took advantage of my company’s crippling situation 
during the pandemic. The school took advantage of my odd behavior to influence my bosses to 
view me as a monstrous criminal who needed to be removed. Dream charter school was placed 
tactically by these evil men who develop to remove all community members, businesses, and 
operations they feel are undesirable for their development plan.  More importantly they are 



attacking landlords with deals and offers that are very hard to refuse. Many landlords were 
damaged during the pandemic and these offers came with strings so heavy. BNS had 
terminated me, their best employee, the most locally known man, and their biggest foot on the 
ground in the south Bronx development process for reasons that do not help, aid, or support my 
company or benefit them at all in the long run. It was immense discrimination and horrible pain 
that I faced and I still just want my job back, to me my job was my everything, it was all I had. ​
​
 I have signed nothing, and I have not agreed to anything, and I am already at discourse to lose 
everything I ever owned. I am in the final fight for my right to remain a community member 
through all the struggles of my torture session which includes suggestive job termination to force 
me into therapy to supposedly keep my job, a fallacy when after I’ve been clean for 20 days my 
job has not been returned to me.  My bosses are being backdoor controlled by these people due 
to the deals, I am not surprised when my job was terminated, I just knew to find my enemies 
and find the influence they had in my company. It was blackmail, slander, and back end 
business deals that caused them to have this extreme level of influence over my job position. It 
is hatred for the mentally unstable, and it is hatred for anyone who is different in this world. My 
company kept me working in the pandemic despite my refusal to wear a mask, and my refusal 
to get vaccinated and my refusal to get weekly testing, I was able to remain employed and 
working because I was one with the buildings, I was diligent and well suited for my job, and I 
was the best and hardest working man they had in the south bronx. To say that BNS would have 
never naturally fired  me is not an understatement. There are bigger powers at play, and I have 
found them. ​



​
​



In the midst of my gym removal, BNS has now decided to renovate the basement of 26/79 
alexander, to better suit their new clientele that they will host at 26 bruckner. Much of the old 
waste and debris have been cleaned out of the basement including old pianos that must have 
been there for centuries. It is very obvious that my firing has become a tactical business 
decision which I defile in my work efforts, and all the years that I have never charged for my 
after hours labor. It is a shame that I have been fired for foolish financial gains, but also a sham 
that they would use my firing to clear out a multi century basement, when I would have gladly 
moved my equipment for them to perform their work. I am curious to see who rents this spot in 
the future and to see if their collusion is indeed with the school for monetary gain.  

I was quickly locked out of glassworks by unknown contractors and their digital intercom, 
tortured by NYULangone forced medical treatment which obtained proof I had no hard drugs in 
my system. I had nobody to talk to about what terrors were done to me, and when i tried to 
emotionally confine in my bosses and I was terminated, and their next attack was being 
escorted by police from the 40th precinct out of my home gym in 26 bruckner that I have built, 
trained in, and used for many many years as a stress relief to my very difficult job. But I still feel 
I am righteously a  BNS employee my real enemy is BROOKFIELD /DREAM CHARTER 
SCHOOL/MADDrealities who owns GDI that build the school/Joy construction, who is using a 
school, money, and power to destroy the lives of not just me, but any community member, 
business, PAROLE and even landlords that have operated in my community for years if they do 
not see them fit to have around for their final plan which is many years in the making, they 
damned me to this fate because I stood in the way of their corruption when they locked up my 
friend and stood up for parole’s place in the neighborhood and have been an community 
member of SEVERAL YEARS. They have sent footage of my protest to my bosses in an 
attempt to embarrass me. Ultimately it serves as blackmail that I am immune to, as only my 
bosses are deceived but they are not as deceived as they say. The truth is in part of my firing 
they are protecting their financial deals done behind closed doors that I did not have knowledge 
of until after I was terminated. I STAND fully in the way of the evil coalition's takeover and thus 
my enemies have sought to eliminate me strategically for development of the south bronx. This 
is the ultimate displacement but they have never expected me to learn, write, or see.​
​
Parole's lease policy requires a 24/7 super as many officers work diligently on schedules that 
you could not imagine. I have done this job for 7 and a half years. Part of the school’s plan is 
they seek to remove parole from around the school by tactically setting up the school in 
between our buildings which are landmarks. By placing a school in between parole they will 
argue that parole shouldn't be near a school and people who fail to understand that they had to 
take me out first are ignorant to the evil in these men's designs as they pretend to operate on 
moral principles. Since my job only exist because of parole, once parole is gone, I suspect they 
will attempt to buy even my home at 129 Alexander and turn it into co ops through the same 
shadow channels that my company is being ran by and controlled by brookfield/madd realities 
operating in the dark secrecy of the company I once know. I serve only the the Bradford N Swett 
family and I will not stand for this take over as I suspect that loss of our old level of control of 
these buildings is not in good faith of Mr. Swett's will, ask the men who pushed him in a 
wheelchair if he would have done this, but they have already begun to deal with the devil of 



development forcing them to terminate their hardest working super. ​
​
I have seen even my closest friend Danny Longmore pass away on this job, which he taught me 
to fight for eternally, and I am eternally fighting. I knew this position would be pressured  in time 
by forces beyond my control once my bosses began talks with Eli Wiess, Jorge Madgura, 
Joshua Weissman of JCALl and Charlie Howe for control of the block by the school and 132nd 
street. I knew a school would hate me simply because I am “mentally unwell”, I even knew the 
school would just label me as a danger to children and teens but I never suspected my bosses 
to wrongfully terminate me for my “mental illness”. I will not stand for my own removal or 
termination which is both cruel and abusive, anyone reading this will know I have died 
metaphorically, and lived on principle. I want to return to my job. I believe Dream seeks to take 
over parole's spot in Glassworks at minimum hence that is why Carson is installed there. It is 
part of their school fantasy to have glassworks as a center for the school as well as they intend 
to serve grades K-12, currently they only have high school aged youth in the main building. This 
is why one of my tenants' spaces was rented to what my bosses considered to be the worst 
tenants while the other remains vacant and un-shown, it is easier to get one tenant out of two 
spaces than it is to get two out of two different spaces. These deals take time, and are thought 
of long before its execution. You must do them in secret, in patterns only the hyper observant 
will see. But more importantly they seek to completely remove parole from this neighborhood. ​
​
They have painted me as a mentally unstable monster, and even sought to arrest me for 
working out in the building I served for many years even before my final benefit date which was 
meant to be June 7th.. If I was locked up it would have been an easy case for them, but since the 
40th precinct recognized me, they took leniency on me despite the claims that there was a man 
capable of harming his bosses in the gym he owned in his bosses building. I thank the 40th 
precinct for their kind treatment of my friend/neighbors/community members. They operate very 
well and are some of the best if you ask me, but I know they are under the same political 
pressures too as soon they will be forced to move from their iconic landmark spot.​



​
In fact I can prove that the Bjarke Ingels Group works with Harlem RBI especially in the work at 
HESTER STREET. So it's not surprising they would move the precinct collectively. ​



​
​
 The school had already used the police force for against said community member because of 
his proximity to life by the school and his economic and social status which is why i had no 
choice but to stand firmly against it especially since I knew they had placed me in the same 
group especially since I was threatened with arrest before I even stood up in the art 
performance, I had tried kindly asking, when I was then hit with that threat forcing me to stand 
up for righteousness with what some may call PTSD. Of course this network’s spys and 
associates decided to record me out of context and send it to my boss, resulting in a damaged 
reputation that forced my boss to discriminate against me on grounds of mental illness. Now it 
has come my turn to lose my job by the same powers who had arrested my friend unjustly, they 
will repeat this strategy as long as the people let it work. When they cannot fill the position 
properly with a man of my same caliber and principles what will they do? When my buildings 
decay they will call contractors, by their will there will be no longer a community member who is 
not vetted or controlled by them serving in any proximity of the building. When the community 
loses members and associates it has known for years, who will rise up? I was the only man 
brave enough to show them their wrongs would be spoken of publicly. When these same men 
come for every landlord who suffered in the pandemic who will be in the way? I will be standing 
up for BNS forever. I work for BNS not the school, why do they have such influence over my 
job? It screams financial leverage, but if not financial leverage then my bosses are the fall guys 
to the dismay of discrimination of the mentally unwell but best believe the entities hate the 
mentally ill as well which is why they arrested my friend. Everyone pretends to be a good 
righteous person but look how they treat anyone they view mentally unfit. ​
​
If the future has no need for me and my job, and if my job has to go, what do I have left? I can 
find a new job but the levels of pain they have put me through to simply get me out of here has 
been criminal and wrong. My protest was conducted in April only after the man in the staff  of 
dream, threatened me with arrest over a phone conversation because I had politely went to the 



school to ask them to take it easy on the man who lived in his car in our community for ten 
years. My protest was such a success and a work of art that it was recorded and sent to my 
boss by dream charter school's gang stalkers only to make sure I was fired. Imagine having 
artwork so powerful that it results in a loss of job, loss of home, loss of gym, and loss of parking 
spot, as all knew my job was the reason I had those things. I worked for those perks, and they 
had no problem using my self expression to remove my job. They had no problem retaliating 
against me to take my job for my protest because my bosses are in bed with the school and 
brookfield properties. I risked all my kingdom to do the right thing, how many people would have 
done so? I am the type of man they fear beyond illness beyond it all, they hate those who get in 
the way of their wrong doings. If they hate the mentally ill so much that they force them to get 
fired, what good are they? At the time I did not see it as a risk because I thought I worked for 
BNS, I did not realize the deals and partnership and influence these men had over my company 
and bosses. They deemed me dangerous and mentally unstable, and thus have discriminated 
against me to the point of a wrongful termination, preventing me from working out in the gym I 
had for years as well. I tried to comply to get my job back but nothing worked. The hatred the 
developers have for mind sickness and self expression is uncanny and leaching into my 
company like corrupt seeds. My bosses fell for it and now after 7 and half years decided I 
needed to be gone.​
​
They hate me because I have been the community member who stood on a strong moral stance 
and expressed his mind against their corruption so they sought to terminate me expecting me 
not to be able to voice or express myself. I suppose all schools look down on men like me as 
illiterate just because we choose to do physical work, never went to college, and simply have a 
small humble living without the fantasy or lies or dreams of major success. However here I am 
wisely using words and constructing my thoughts just as well as they pretend they have 
superiority in doing. To learn and grow is not to be limited, hence why as I learned to fix many 
things, I have expanded my ability to speak and reason as well. I used to be bullied in school, 
how ironic that a school has chosen to bully me in adulthood. ​
​
I have dealt with both parolees and parole officers, and I have never gotten into any bad 
situations with these people, in fact many parolees are happy to see me working, and often 
recognize me. I was the face of building maintenance to these people but I was shamed in a 
blackmail and slander campaign. I have no criminal record but my ability to navigate the 
mentally ill and understand even some of the criminals, made me a target. How could a man get 
along with so many different walks of life? Because I believe in paradise, and I knew how easily 
I could get along with any man or woman as long as I understood them. Yet this coalition of 
dream charter school, brook field properties, and those developing my neighborhood, hated me 
so badly that they sought to have me arrested too so that they too could paint me as a criminal 
but what have they done to drive me to that state? Yet I never faltered, I always respect the law 
despite my constant outside drinking with friends.​
​
​
This school has no problem slandering people and using police force to do so, they enforce their 
lies. They continue their slander, and they act as if their actions aren't the reason for my 



removal. The first time they could blame alcohol and since it was after school hours, they could 
do nothing. The school wanted to arrest me so badly, so the second time when I was sober 
speaking to myself, they decided to send me to an asylum with lies about my intoxication.  Their 
cruel treatment of me is CRIMINAL. Not only did they remove my job, it wasn't enough, now 
they have to pretend to be trying to help me, by sending me to hospitals, and keeping me locked 
up for extended hours. The community manager lady knew how bad it would look to arrest the 
same super who got fired so she attempted to talk me out of both releasing this bombshell of 
information to people, and to pretend as if dream did not remove my job with slander. The 
school found me an easy  target because I drink, because I have no wife and kids, and because 
I am vocal with weird behavioral quirks to discriminate against me on grounds of mental illness. 
But this community manager will never do her due diligence and see her own footage of the day 
Juan was arrested where I went to the school nicely first. When kindness was met with  arrest 
threats, I went to the streets to bring my brother home. She believes she will find a disgruntled 
super or something reflective of the man they deem a monster, but instead when she finds out 
she will see a super pleading  for good treatment of his friend. ​
​
They refuse to admit or correct their wrong doings of me, the guilt and lies they spill will eat 
them at night. They lie, they have lied, and will continue to lie to defend their evil conglomerate 
from being looked into, researched, and figured out. She is just a plant they put in the 
neighborhood to remove men like me who are onto them and mentally ill, just as Jcal plants 
many in their network of big business partners to take over Mott Haven. This plan of slander and 
taking  out community members will continue, they can do it to anyone, they have the police 
force on their whim and call, and will continue to place unnecessary pressure on them to 
remove good community members. They ultimately refuse to own up to the fact that they have 
used out of context footage with the most dangerous weapon in America, a cell phone, capable 
of catching men and women at their lowest moments, capable of causing good hard working 
people to lose their job. ​
​
When you are threatened with arrest, when you see your own friends and community members 
removed from a school that  claims to be a dream, when you speak out against it and lose your 
job, then report you lost your job only to serve a sentence in the psych ward, who will be there 
to defend you? My job was taken from me, my life is terminated, and there is nobody else but 
me to discover this evil network that is gentrifying the neighborhood, crushing anyone who 
speaks out against it, getting rid of any undesirable neighbors, and using police powers and 
school leverage to do so. I am hated because I am deemed mentally ill.​
​
They have slandered  and harassed my boss with footage of me and pretend to be innocent 
parties. Blaming me for my explosion, when the reality was I was on to their corruption. They are 
cruel, and had no problem making sure I end up homeless. The holding period was not meant to 
help me but instead an attempt to break my will, and pacify me from releasing all the lies and 
campaign  against me.  Business ties, worker lies, a strong discriminatory hatred toward the 
mentally ill,  mixed in with pandemic money, and desire to control the street, I am attacked with 
this simple ordeal. They have collectively determined I am too dangerous to have in what used 
to be the poorest neighborhood in the Bronx, because gentrifiers have deemed me a Demon.  



They are protecting their own by making up the same lies. No relationship manager can answer 
why over the phone they threatened to arrest me for asking the school nicely to take it easy on 
my friend. Instead they continue their march of slander and attack me right on the block I live in. 
They are trying to remove their guilt of getting me fired with malice and falsehood of trying to 
protect me, by sending me to a mental asylum for discovering their whole plot. Ironically I do not 
lie, but liars and slanders surround your kids, hide 80 million they could be using on your 
children, and destroy the lives of community members who have principle and integrity. I 
continue my record of doing no crime or wrongdoing still after every ordeal. The truth is they 
hate me. They cannot break me, and nor can they buy me out. I know their operations, and I 
know how dangerous they are, but I am not afraid of tyrants, I am not afraid of people with 
money, yet they fear community members like me. Soon they will clear out anyone they do not 
want in the neighborhood.​
​
I believe this take over plan to extend to the removal of the projects, by relocating the 40th 
precinct to ST and they could ruin community policing eventually the projects will be a shameful 
disaster of crime, justifying the removal of the buildings. This plan is many years further down in 
the making, so it's not too relevant here. Just know it will continue beyond just the underpass 
that serves as a divider of gentrification and the bronx roots. ​
​
Here are the habits they smite me for, and best believe it is nothing worse than what any of your 
friends, family, teachers, or community members do. Remind yourself always that these people 
go home to real nice lives, real nice wives, real nice pockets, some with children and cars, and 
MORE MONEY than I could ever make in my lifetime, they talk multi million dollar deals. Yet 
their corruption and greed and their desire to influence the next generation completely, they 
chose to assassinate the living of a building superintendent with no wife, no children, a little bit 
of money in his pockets with a home gym, and a plethora of tools and skills, a old car in their 
parking lot, for his mental state and beliefs, which they know through their network of 
gangstalkers. They even hated me for working on my own old car in the parking lot of my 
building, something I had done for years before their arrival. They also need me gone because I 
was the only one who stood up against their neighborhood clean up operation. They took my 
friend, they took my job for defending my friend, but what did they expect me to do when I have 
no job. I am still fighting for just simply my job back, and this manifesto will remain permanent 
and true. They hate the mentally ill.They do not like men like me who are honest and 
hardworking. I will be fair and give you all my habits so that you can see what they hate me for. ​
​
I LOVE to smoke cigarettes and weed.​
I LOVE to drink wine, beer, and I love to do it outside with my friends on the block. The 40th 
precinct knows us well.​
I am on good terms with almost everyone, I have been peaceful and I have no criminal record.​
I protect my friends to the end and I will always speak against injustices.​
I seek to be free without control over my life by employers or those who control big deal 
developments. I have no problem working and working hard for a living but that has been 
stripped from me.​
I am capable of having a peaceful yet seemingly off means of speaking to myself and spreading 



wisdom out loud. Free speech is a human right..​
I believe in GOD, and I talk to myself and walk around the neighborhood on watch at night to 
keep my neighborhood and loved ones safe. ​
I did NOT take the Covid vaccine, a major hatred that many people have in their souls that they 
cannot seem to relinquish.​
​
My terms are simple, I even begged to be reinstated but nothing is working against these 
developers and they successfully changed the hearts of my bosses as my begging and pleading 
doesn't work.. In fact I have seen my tenants mourn for my loss, and believe I should have my 
position back. I am fighting to the metaphorical death, they painted me as a monster with 
blackmail, I have been through so much pain to simply keep my job that I have done well. I am 
tormented every night, and while Dream charter school pretends to get children to achieve their 
dreams, I am being crushed, dominated, and the way I dream to live is being destroyed.​
​
My terms are Just, and proper, reinstate me as the super, ignore the pressure.​
I seek the following.​
I do not want money, I have escaped greed long ago, they cannot buy me out.​
You will return every property to me, and they will be declared landmarks of the united states of 
america. ​
I want my freedom of self expression to be validated and protected by my employer, I lived in 
America all my life. All I know is freedom.​
I want nothing more.​
​
In the mean time my Dream is simple, the court will see the torture I have been sentenced to for 
self expression and worse of all my BNS management will continue to be forced to endure this 
unfair pressure and control these financial conglomerates have over them. ​
It will be a disgrace and unlawful violation to Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
and Section 501 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 501). With this manifesto I feel even 
the people will have enough information to judge whether I am correct, I feel that many if not all 
of the community will see that I was forever of good moral character, all the community will see 
my persecution and exile. I will forever keep and provide my testimony until justice is served. I 
believe all I know and everything I've been through to be full testimony to the power, corruption, 
and pain that these developers bring when they ISOLATE community members from their 
development in the community, based on personal behavior, based on their own bias toward 
others and how others live, based on hatred on what kind of mental illnesses neighbors of a 
school can have. I believe all will see the unfair pressure and financial pain family landlords 
dealt with in the pandemic only to be saved by devilish deals from developers who sought this 
neighborhood take over from all angles of society.​
​
This is the real form of gentrification that destroys individual lives, takes over land, and hurts 
good family landlords, takes over businesses, as well as an extreme displacement of members 
of the community and worse of all it discriminates harshly on all accords. But I will not forgo my 
home, I CANNOT let these developers get away with displacing me and others within the 
neighborhood. I am simply one of many dominoes to fall but they did not expect me to speak my 



truth, they wanted to keep my quiet in the dark as they wrong me. Those who do evil hate being 
ousted.​
​
 If I am granted nothing, I will seek vengeance by simply telling the truth I am no criminal. The 
BNS superintendent is coming for the developers of the south Bronx with logic and honesty. 
This testimony cannot be erased from the memory of those who knew, heard, saw, or read or 
witnessed my suffering. This testimony is just a simple part of my ongoing war. A war of the 
neighborhood, as I am at battle against those who will deem anyone or any business or any 
land owner, who lives/operates here unfit to be part of their development plan.​
​
I stand alone, as simply the super of BNS real estate and for bradford n swett’s true will. I 
sought to be tried by the company alone but because backroom deals, private conversations, 
blackmail, and persecution of perception of my life has damned me to this destruction of my 
LIFE. All of BNS, and all their original contractors know I have always done a good job. I have 
never failed my duty to get along with all business partners and companies that aid and work 
with my management. However, these deals by organizations and developers who hate me 
based on my self expression and mental illness, have forced my company’s hand to wrongfully 
terminate me. I stand to fulfill my duties as a company employee, I seek only reinstatement of 
my life, I seek only that developers leave community members, struggling landlords, business 
and my management alone, and stop using their financial leverage to accomplish their botched 
and corrupt DREAM of owning all of the south bronx. When they could not arrest me, they took 
my job instead for simply doing what a man who has been here for 10 years does and 
defending his place in my neighborhood, and when I spoke out of what they did to me in a 
second stance, they locked me up in an asylum. A one man army display  has deemed me 
inoperable for their plan because they find me repulsive through their hatred of men like me, my 
knowledge of their evil plot, and my awareness to oust their wrong doings.​
​
I had no plans to bring Indignation down upon these people but they sought to bring their 
judgment on me, without jury, without trial, with leverage over my bosses through deals, and 
finally blackmail and gang stalking of my private living. Thus I have exhausted all options but to 
fight with words. I am no criminal, I am non violent. I live alone, I have no children, and I sought 
to simply be left alone, but they refused. They hated me for how well I worked, and they hated 
my existence simply for my own choices of alcohol/weed, my very own beliefs, existence, my 
mental state and my own dream but most of all my ability to stand up for what is righteous even 
with peaceful rage and fury. I have no apathy toward life, and I do not think life is a game or 
movie. I know life to be good but I am aware of how evil chooses to conduct their corrupt idea of 
business. I may be mentally unwell, and the arrest threats may have triggered me but these are 
no grounds to fire me, tortment me, or take abuse of my life to such extremes.​
​
 I am on the front lines of the communities freedom, the right for all men and women who have 
been here for years, to live and do as they please in the south bronx while men with more 
power, money, and sinister desires step up to destroy our natural living based on what they 
deem unworthy to be next to their school. I will not be ashamed of myself, especially when all 
see I have told nothing but the TRUTH. This is a gentrification attack that comes in the form of 



terminating long standing employees who are aware of their wrong doings. They do not know 
the full story of my life and they simply hate how I behave, who I am, and what I do and believe 
in, and when they witnessed how passionately i spoke against what they did, they deemed me 
insane and mentally ill, since I was now their opposition they sought to take my job intentionally 
by sending my protest footage to my boss, who was scared of their financial leverage over him, 
so he yielded to their idea. ​
​ ​
I am standing in the way of a conspiracy that is indeed criminal, to round up and displace all 
members of the community who are deemed delinquents, to control all businesses that operate 
in the area, and to take over landlords who have owned property in the neighborhood for 
several years, by the school preferential treatment by false perception of truth, through use of 
the school's power which is only one seed in their plot, a second seed being financial leverage 
over suffering landlords and business who struggled through the pandemic, all because they 
have deep rooted partnerships with those who profited in the pandemic’s suffering, and have 
politicians in their pockets. The organizations involved plan to  repeat this strategy over and 
over again on unsuspecting community members. I am sure, there is much much more 
information to be found on this network but my testimony is simply just a start. Soon all will 
come to light. ​
​
As it stands there is not a single civil rights leader left, there is no man to represent the 
community, good landlords, and good businesses, there is simply money and big deals that are 
controlling everything while hard working people ,and long term community members are 
DISPLACED/EXILED/REMOVED. Long term businesses are taken over financially, and Good 
Landlords are being manipulated by deals and offers that come with strings, all because they 
stood by their tenants who couldn't pay during the pandemic. I have risen to this moment not by 
my own choice, but through the injustice of blackmail, slander, termination, and destruction of 
my life, I have been sentenced to exile without judge, or jury, suddenly then I realized there was 
a bigger battle I did not see. I am fighting for my company as well. I am crazy enough to expose 
the wrong doing to me because of my mind’s condition.​
​
Ask your school what dreams they can fulfill if they crush the dreams within their community.​
Ask  the coalition of evil and all their partners how much money they made during the pandemic 
while good landlords suffered.​
Ask community members who should have control over the south Bronx, those who have been 
here for years? Or those who sought opportunity to take over with leverage from a pandemic?​
Why did BNS not protect me against these people? 
​
​
If they attempt to paint me as having a mental illness, everyone knows it does not interfere with 
my job, and I am in the same mental health I have been since I started the job. It is a great 
disgrace to the law. In this case since I lack a diagnosis they simply have believed what the 
school says. ​



​
​
 All parties involved, including my bosses,  view my spiritual beliefs, my religious beliefs as 
means to take my job away all because the school has decided to harass them and torment 
them with footage of my personal life. I believe the level of harassment my employer faces from 
these developers caused them to discriminate against me for my mental health thus provoking 
their attempts to force me into therapy, and ultimately my termination.  My bosses accepted my 
religious exemption because they trust me fully, my bosses know all my behavior quirks and 
liked me for it, it was only until this needless, wrongful pressure and defamation from these new 
partners caused me to be sentenced to exile, removal, and to destroy the life i built here in the 
the neighborhood. I worked hard untested, unmasked, and unvaccinated during a pandemic for 
my buildings and my employer. I am being taken out of the location that has people and 
businesses that accept me. I am being taken from the job I love, and I am being taken from the 
buildings that loved me. I used to collect inanimate objects as a kid and give them names and 
they were living to me. Now I believe even my buildings are weeping on my removal. I need to 
be returned to my rightful place, without fear of this level of corrupt high level discrimination so 
that I can die and live in peace, the pursuit of happiness, and with freedom that is only found in 
America. My company needs me, my buildings need me, my neighborhood needs me, and I 
need my job. It made me truly at peace, and I was truly happy. I suppose I could find happiness 
somewhere else but I fear I will never be accepted. There is no way I can let this stand without 
me utilizing all of my ability to refute it. I cannot let corruption continue in secret when it has 
taken my life from me. ​
​
​
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SOURCE PAGES. HERE I INCLUDE ALL LINKS I READ AND USED. NOT EVERY LINK WILL 
BE REFERENCED BUT EACH ONE PROVIDED SOME INSIGHT TO THE ORDEAL. IN NO 
ORDER. ALL THESE LINKS WILL PROVIDE INSIGHT TO THE LAND GRAB CURRENTLY 
GOING ON THAT AFFECTS MANY LANDLORDS INCLUDING MY COMPANY.​
https://wearedream.org/our-leadership/​
https://www.latinoleadersmagazine.com/heroes-of-the-fight-against-covid19/2021/7/14/alfredo-a
ngueira-perseverance-and-adaptation-a-business-survival-guide-in-a-new-era​
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https://therealdeal.com/new-york/2018/05/17/meet-the-developer-building-market-rate-in-mott-h
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e/​
https://www.nytimes.com/2022/05/30/us/nyc-construction-deaths-immigrants.html​
https://commercialobserver.com/2018/12/capital-one-lends-38m-to-refi-carnegies-new-resi-bron
x-project/​
https://www.blackstone.com/news/press/blackstone-announces-appointment-of-jeffrey-b-kindler-
former-chairman-and-ceo-of-pfizer-as-senior-advisor/​
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